
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 

Date: Monday 8 December 2014 

Time: 6.00 pm 

Place: St Aldate's Room, Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Sarah Claridge, Committee Services Officer 

Telephone: 01865 252402 

Email: sclaridge@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record the meeting please let the Contact Officer know how 
you wish to do this before the start of the meeting. 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN A COPY OF THE AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no 
longer produce paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and 
Council member requirement. Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall 
Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

Scrutiny Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Craig Simmons  
 
Vice Chair Councillor Tom Hayes  

 Councillor Mohammed Altaf-Khan  

 Councillor Farida Anwar  

 Councillor Van Coulter  

 Councillor Roy Darke  

 Councillor James Fry  

 Councillor Sam Hollick  

 Councillor David Henwood  

 Councillor Ben Lloyd-Shogbesan  

 Councillor Louise Upton  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

AGENDA 
 

 
  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest interests 
they may have in any of the following agenda items. Guidance on this is set 
out at the end of these agenda pages. 

 

 

3 UPDATES SINCE THE LAST MEETING 

 

 

 For Scrutiny Members to update the Committee on any developments since 
the last meeting. 
 
The Chairs of the Finance and Housing Standing Panels may wish to update 
the Committee on their work.  
 
The progress of review panels is briefly set out in section 2 of the work 
programme but Lead Members may wish to supplement this by providing a 
verbal update.   
 

 

 

4 CORPORATE PEER CHALLENGE ACTION PLAN 

 

9 - 38 

 Contact Officer: Peter Sloman, Chief Executive 
Tel: 01865 252354 
Email: psloman@oxford.gov.uk 
 

Background Information 

 
The City Council recently invited a Corporate Peer Challenge team 
to provide an external reality check and reassurance that the 
Council’s plans – within the Council and city – over the next few 
years are sustainable.   
 
A central message was that the Council should now become a 
Leader of Place and the City Council has developed an Action Plan 
in response to the peer team’s feedback. 
 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
It was suggested at full Council in July 2014 that Scrutiny review 
considers the City Council’s response to the peer team’s feedback.  
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Cllr Bob Price and Peter Sloman have been invited to attend the 
Committee for this discussion. 
 

 



 

 
 

 

5 CLEAN STREETS 

 

39 - 42 

 Contact Officer: Douglas Loveridge, Streetscene Services Manager 
Tel: 01865 252957 
Email: dloveridge@oxford.gov.uk 
 

Background Information 

 
At its meeting in September, Scrutiny raised concerns about the level 
of performance against street cleaning indicators, as well as issues 
such as waste collections in the city centre, littering and graffiti. 
 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
Scrutiny requested a report to address these concerns. 
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Douglas Loveridge has been invited to answer questions and 
support the Committee in its discussion. 
 

 
 

 

 

6 DISCRETIONARY RATES RELIEF FOR BUSINESSES POLICY 

 

43 - 66 

 Lead Member: Councillor Finance, Asset Management and Public 
Health 

 

 Report of the Head of Customer Services  

 Contact Officer: Tanya Bandekar, Service Manager - Revenues and Benefits 
Tel: 01865 252281 
Email: tbandekar@oxford.gov.uk 
 

Background Information 

 
This is a review of the Council’s Discretionary Rates Relief for 
Businesses policy. 
 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
The Committee selected this item for pre-scrutiny. 
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Tanya Bandekar has been invited to answer questions and support 
the Committee in its discussion. 
 

 
 

 



 

 

7 WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 

 

67 - 96 

 Contact Officer: Andrew Brown, Scrutiny Officer 
Tel: 01865 252230 
Email: abrown2@oxford.gov.uk 
 

Background Information 

 
Indicative agenda schedules are set out in section 5 of the Scrutiny 
Work Programme. 
 
The latest Forward Plan is included which outlines decisions to be 
taken by the City Executive Board or Council. 
 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
The work programme will be reviewed at every meeting so that it can 
be adjusted to reflect the wishes of the Committee 
 
Members are asked to select which Forward Plan items they wish to 
pre-scrutinise based on the following criteria: 
 
- Is the issue controversial / of significant public interest? 
- Is it an area of high expenditure? 
- Is it an essential service / corporate priority?  
- Can Scrutiny influence and add value? 
 
A maximum of three items for pre-scrutiny will normally apply.   
 
Please note that one pre-scrutiny item is already pencilled in for the 
January meeting, having slipped from December. 
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Andrew Brown, Scrutiny Officer can support the Committee in its 
discussion. 
 

 

 

 

8 REPORT BACK ON RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

97 - 104 

 Contact Officer: Andrew Brown, Scrutiny Officer,  
Tel: 01865 252230, 
Email: abrown2@oxford.gov.uk 
 

Background Information 

 
The Committee makes a number of recommendations to officers and 
decision makers. This item allows Committee to review the results of 
recommendations since the last meeting and the cumulative results 
of all scrutiny recommendations. 
 

 



 

Why is it on the agenda? 

 
For members to note and monitor executive responses. 
 

Who has been invited to comment? 

 
Andrew Brown, Scrutiny Officer 
 

 

 

9 MINUTES 

 

105 - 110 

 Minutes from 10 November 2014 
 
Recommendation: That the minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 
2014 be APPROVED as a true and accurate record. 

 

 

10 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 

 

 Meetings are scheduled as followed: 
 
23 December 2014 (10am start, if needed) 
19 January 2015 
3 February 2015 
2 March 2015 
23 March 2015 
5 May 2015 
 
Meetings begin at 6pm unless stated otherwise. 

 

 



 

DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
General duty 
 
You must declare any disclosable pecuniary interests when the meeting reaches the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. 
 
What is a disclosable pecuniary interest? 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to your* employment; sponsorship (ie payment for expenses 
incurred by you in carrying out your duties as a councillor or towards your election expenses); 
contracts; land in the Council’s area; licences for land in the Council’s area; corporate tenancies; 
and securities.  These declarations must be recorded in each councillor’s Register of Interests which 
is publicly available on the Council’s website. 
 
Declaring an interest 
 
Where any matter disclosed in your Register of Interests is being considered at a meeting, you must 
declare that you have an interest.  You should also disclose the nature as well as the existence of 
the interest. 
 
If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest, after having declared it at the meeting you must not 
participate in discussion or voting on the item and must withdraw from the meeting whilst the matter 
is discussed. 
 
Members’ Code of Conduct and public perception 
 
Even if you do not have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter, the Members’ Code of Conduct 
says that a member “must serve only the public interest and must never improperly confer an 
advantage or disadvantage on any person including yourself” and that “you must not place yourself 
in situations where your honesty and integrity may be questioned”.  What this means is that the 
matter of interests must be viewed within the context of the Code as a whole and regard should 
continue to be paid to the perception of the public. 
 
*Disclosable pecuniary interests that must be declared are not only those of the member her or himself 
but also those of the member’s spouse, civil partner or person they are living with as husband or wife 
or as if they were civil partners. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 

To: Scrutiny Committee  
 
Date: 8 December 2014 

 
Report of:  Chief Executive, Peter Sloman  
  
Title of Report: Corporate Peer Challenge –LGA Peer Review 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To update members on actions since the peer review to implement 

their key recommendations and to outline the future action plan. 
          
Key decision          No 
 
Executive lead member:  Councillor Bob Price, Leader 
 
Policy Framework:  Corporate Plan 
 
Recommendation:  Members comment on the action plan 
 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix One – Peer Review letter 
Appendix Two - list of accolades received by Oxford City Council 
 
 
  
Background 
 
Scope and Focus of the Peer Challenge 

1. The peer team was asked to provide an external reality check and reassurance that the 
Council’s progress and plans over the next few years are sustainable, and that there is 
sufficient capacity and capability to move confidently into the future.  

The Peer Challenge Process 

2. Peer challenges are improvement-focused and tailored to meet individual councils’ 
needs.  They are designed to complement and add value to a council’s own 
performance and improvement focus.   

3. The team members reviewed a range of documents and information in order to 
familiarize themselves with the Council and the challenges it faces.  The team spent 
three days onsite at Oxford, speaking to a range of staff, councillors, and external 
partners and stakeholders, gathering information and views from more than 30 meetings 
and additional research, reading and site visits, and collectively spending more than 200 
hours to determine their findings.  

 

 

 

9

Agenda Item 4



 
 
Summary of Feedback: Overall Observations and Messages 

 
4. The Council is delivering some impressive outcomes.   It is clearly building on its 
notable and sustained improvement journey over the past few years.  The significant 
progress has been externally recognised extensively through a range of awards and 
accreditations, including the ‘Best Achieving Council’ award at the Municipal Journal 
Awards 2014.  The Council is striving to be even better, and wants to move from 
‘good to great’.  

 
5. There is strong and stable political and managerial leadership, underpinned by good 
member-officer relationships and a mutual understanding of the respective leadership 
roles.   

 
6. Staff are clearly proud and passionate to work for the Council. There is a good 
awareness of the key future challenges which will include advancing the ‘one council’ 
approach further and ensuring workforce development keeps pace with the 
organisational change required to deliver the ambition of building a ‘World Class City 
for everyone’ 

 
7. Effective and strengthened financial management, the significant efficiency savings 
delivered, a well-developed trading approach to deliver income generation, and a 
prudent approach to risk have helped the Council to respond well to the financial 
challenges to date.  Plans in place for the medium term beyond 2015/16 have helped to 
put the Council in a position of financial resilience relative to many other local 
authorities. 

 
8. The Council has a good understanding of its City.  There is an evidence-led approach 
to policy development and a corporate planning and delivery model that looks to align 
the Council’s organisational capacity and resources with the agreed priorities.  
However, the unique context and complex set of issues in Oxford, coupled with a 
diverse range of stakeholders and views, and political differences, mean there is less 
consensus and agreement about how to tackle some of the key priorities, such as 
housing growth and economic development, and the pace at which this needs to be 
delivered.   

 
9. There are good examples of the Council working in partnership with others on shared 
agendas, which can be developed further to deliver positive outcomes.  The Oxford 
Strategic Partnership appears to be well regarded as a mechanism for the key 
agencies and organisations in the city to come together to consider strategic issues and 
priorities.   

 
10. The Council is keen to provide strong and visible leadership to the city to enable the 
delivery of its ambitions and to be seen as the ‘leader of place’.  Although the Council 
has promoted partnership working with the County Council and Districts though the City 
Deal, Strategic Economic Plan and the development of the Growth Board, there is the 
need to develop some of its key relationships further.    
 

Key Recommendations 
 

11. The peer team made four key recommendations that they believe will help the Council 
progress the work on which it has embarked:  
 
a) Capitalise on the external awards and accolades to further strengthen the Council’s 
reputation and credibility to deliver for the City. 10



 
b) Continue to further improve organisational efficiency and grow capacity in order to 
meet your growing ambitions. 
 

c) Better co-ordinate partner involvement to harness their energy, commitment, and 
resources. 
 

d) Further develop the influencing role and strategy through a more sophisticated and 
wider approach to corporate affairs, communications and branding, and in doing this 
be clear about the purpose of influencing. 

 
Update on Progress since the Review 
 
12. The Council Leader has developed a structured programme of contact with key 

stakeholders: 
a) Businesses 
b) University 
c) Health Sector 
d) Cultural organisations 
e) Local Authorities 
f) Public Sector Partners 
 

13. This contact is through individual organisational visits and partnership structures such 
as: 

a) Oxford Strategic Partnership 
b) Oxfordshire Growth Board 
c) Cultural Industries Partnership 
d) Local Enterprise Partnership 
e) City County Bilateral 

 
14. The Chief Executive and the Leader also maintain informal networks locally. 
 
15. In recent months significant work across the University and with neighbouring Borough 

Councils has taken place to promote the vision and agree the approach to 
implementing the City Deal for economic growth and the supporting infrastructure 
which is required to support it.  

 
16. At a national level the City has met with Lord Adonis and supported the Lyons review 

both aimed at encouraging national support for growing cities like Oxford in terms of 
changes to the spacial planning framework and devolution to cities. 

 
17. We have also formed an alliance with Norwich and Cambridge to lobby for these 

changes and to raise our profile nationally as a Key City which can contribute to 
national economic growth. 

 
18. We have become a member of the Key Cities Group to raise the city profile.  
 
19. The awards and accolades have kept coming since the peer review and a current list 

is appended (Appendix Two). We have publicised them locally and held events with 
successful staff teams. The awards continue to promote the Council nationally as 
leader in the sector. 

 
20. The Chief Executive has agreed with Service Heads, Directors and the Leader to 

undertake a management structure review by Easter 2015. The aims of the review are: 
a) To improve efficiency: flattening structures, reducing numbers and cost; 11



b) Grow capacity and capability to meet new challenges such as community 
cohesion, neighbourhood working, strategic corporate policy, improved 
approach to external affairs, place-shaping and delivering a significant housing 
investment programme; 

c) Temporary additional resources will be brought in to support the external 
affairs work and implement the recommendations resulting from a review of 
our communications and consultation work. 

 
21. The Administration has commissioned the Corporate Management Team to pilot an 

approach to Neighbourhood Management in three areas with larger social housing 
estates, namely Rose Hill, the Leys and Barton. 
 

22. The Corporate Team has pulled together an officer working party for each area 
chaired by a Director. This Director is liaising with local members and community 
organisations in the locality to ensure: 

a. Actions plans and projects in place are resourced and progressed; 
b. The quality of local public services improves and the work of Council teams 
is co-ordinated; 

c. The action plan for the area is developed and it addresses social, economic 
and environmental needs of the location, and local people are involved in its 
formation, and it is realistic and prioritised.  

d. There is effective work being undertaken to grow community capacity and 
involvement; 

e. Other agencies are fully involve in work addressing deprivation and 
community priorities, particularly Health, the County Council, the Police and 
the voluntary sector; 

f. That harder to reach groups are actively involved. 
 
23. The Council is about to review its medium term financial strategy. We are committing to 
achieve a £7M revenue expenditure reduction by 2018/19 on an annualised basis. The 
total savings and increased income proposed over the next four years is £22.5M. 

 
24. The efficiency challenge is significant and will involve: 

a. Reducing the cost of management; 
b. Reducing administration costs; 
c. Increasing income from trading; 
d. A significant fall in annual general fund capital spend. 

 
25. To achieve these efficiencies the Corporate Management Team will: 

a. Work to achieve a one organisational culture reducing costs of transactions 
between services; 

b. Increase the capacity to focus on strategy, policy development to ensure we are 
securing value for money and working most effectively to achieve the Council’s 
objectives; 

c. Work closer in partnership across city organisations to bring in external 
resources and focus our efforts on what makes a difference. 

 
26. Whilst resources on the general fund are reducing, we are proposing embarking on the 
Council’s largest ever Housing Capital Programme: redesigning and improving our 
estates, building 700 new homes and reducing energy poverty and reducing the 
housing stock’s carbon footprint. 

 
27. The organisational challenge is to complete our work on community centres and park 
facilities and our new investment in Housing in a manner which involves communities 
in shaping the work and not allowing reducing general fund revenue resources to 
undermine management capacity to achieve this. 12



 
28. The Council in 2020 is likely to employ less staff and managers, be more focused on 
achieving the economic, social and environmental objectives through strategic 
partnership across the City. We will be focused on making a difference city-wide but 
also focused on local neighbourhood partnerships. 

 
Future Actions 
 
29. These are to: 

a. Raise Oxford’s profile through the LGA and Key Cities Group; 
b. Continue to network at Chief Executive and Leader level with critical local 
stakeholders; 

c. Continue to strengthen Oxford’s Local Strategic Partnership; 
d. Council Leader to continue making bilateral visits to stakeholders; 
e. Appoint an interim manager to boost capacity on external corporate affairs 
and communications ahead of the management restructuring designed to 
resource this work; 

f. Complete the management restructure; 
g. Focus training on creating a ‘One Council’ culture; 
h. Implement the efficiency strategy and MTFS targets; 
i. Keep neighbourhood working under review and roll out approach to other 
parts of the City when concept is proved. 

 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name     Peter Sloman 
Job title   Chief Executive 
Service Area / Department    Chief Executive 
Tel:  01865 252354  e-mail:  psloman@oxford.gov.uk 
 

List of background papers:None 
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Local Government House, Smith Square, London SW1P 3HZ   
T 020 7664 3000 F 020 7664 3030 E info@local.gov.uk www.local.gov.uk  
Chief Executive: Carolyn Downs 

 

Peter Sloman 
Chief Executive 

Oxford City Council 
Town Hall 
St Aldate’s 
Oxford  
OX1 1BX 
 
 
July 2014 
 
 
Dear Peter 
 
Oxford City Council - Corporate Peer Challenge 
2nd-4th July 2014 

On behalf of the peer team I would like to say what a pleasure and privilege it was to be 
invited into Oxford City Council to deliver the recent corporate peer challenge as part of 
the Local Government Association (LGA) offer to support sector led improvement.  

Peer challenges are delivered by experienced elected member and officer peers.  The 
make-up of the peer team reflected your requirements and the focus of the peer 
challenge.  Peers were selected on the basis of their relevant experience and expertise 
and agreed with you.  The peers who delivered the peer challenge at Oxford were: 

 Nick Hodgson – former Chief Executive of Derbyshire County Council 

 Councillor Jackie Meldrum – London Borough of Lambeth 

 Averil Price – Director of Safer Communities, Chelmsford City Council 

 Sarah Reed – Assistant Chief Executive, Sunderland City Council 

 Clare Hudson – Programme Manager, Local Government Association 

 Paul Clarke – Programme Manager, Local Government Association 

 
Scope and focus of the peer challenge 

You asked the peer team to provide an external reality check and reassurance that the 
Council’s progress and plans – within the Council and the city - over the next few years 
are sustainable and that you have the capacity and capability to move confidently into 
the future.  

To do this the peer team reflected on the areas considered by all LGA corporate peer 
challenges: 

1. Understanding of the local context and priority setting: Does the council understand 
its local context and has it established a clear set of priorities?  

15

mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://www.local.gov.uk/
emma.mace
Highlight

emma.mace_1
Comment on Text

emma.mace_2
Text Box
APPENDIX ONE



  

2 

2. Financial planning and viability: Does the council have a financial plan in place to 
ensure long term viability and is there evidence that it is being implemented 
successfully?  

3. Political and managerial leadership: Does the council have effective political and 
managerial leadership and is it a constructive partnership?  

4. Governance and decision-making: Are effective governance and decision-making 
arrangements in place to respond to key challenges and manage change, 
transformation and disinvestment?  

5. Organisational capacity: Are organisational capacity and resources focused in the 
right areas in order to deliver the agreed priorities? 

You also asked the peer team to provide feedback on how the Council can become a 
more effective ‘leader of place’ through your partnership working and collaboration. 
Finally you requested we provide some observations to help inform your future 
approach to community engagement.  

The peer challenge process 

It is important to stress that this was not an inspection.  Peer challenges are 
improvement-focussed and tailored to meet individual councils’ needs.  They are 
designed to complement and add value to a council’s own performance and 
improvement focus.  The peer team used their experience and knowledge of local 
government to reflect on the information presented to them by people they met, things 
they saw and material that they read. 

The team prepared for the peer challenge by reviewing a range of documents and 
information in order to ensure they were familiar with the Council and the challenges it is 
facing.  The team then spent 3 days onsite at Oxford, during which they: 

 Spoke to more than 90 people including a range of council staff together with 
councillors and external partners and stakeholders. 

 Gathered information and views from more than 30 meetings and additional 
research, reading and site visits.   

 Collectively spent more than 200 hours to determine their findings – the 
equivalent of one person spending nearly 6 weeks in Oxford.  

This letter provides a summary of the peer team’s findings.  It builds on the feedback 
presentation provided by the peer team at the end of their on-site visit (2nd-4th July 
2014).  In presenting feedback to you, they have done so as fellow local government 
officers and members, not professional consultants or inspectors.  By its nature, the 
peer challenge is a snapshot in time.  We appreciate that some of the feedback may 
be about things you are already addressing and progressing.   

16



  

3 

Summary of feedback: overall observations and messages 

 
Oxford City Council is a good council delivering some impressive outcomes.   The 

authority is clearly building on its notable and sustained improvement journey over 
the past few years.  The significant progress made has been externally recognised 
extensively through a range of awards and accreditations, including the ‘Best 

Achieving Council’ award at the Municipal Journal Awards 2014.  There is much to 
celebrate and be proud of at Oxford, and our feedback is presented in the context of 
the Council striving to be even better, and wanting to move from ‘good to great’. We 

think the Council should be confident about its capacity and capability to meet future 
challenges, whilst not being complacent about the scale and complexity of the task 
ahead. 

 
The Council is benefitting from strong and stable political and managerial leadership, 
underpinned by good member-officer relationships and a mutual understanding of the 
respective leadership roles.  This is helping to create a positive energy across the 
Council.  Staff are clearly proud and passionate to work for the Council and are 
obviously motivated and empowered to do their best for the organisation and the city 
it serves. Key challenges moving forward will include further fostering and embedding 
the ‘one council’ approach – to develop the understanding and inter-relationships 
between different services that impact on customer journeys - and ensuring 
workforce development can keep pace with the organisational change required to 
deliver the ambition of building a ‘World Class City for everyone’.  There is a good 
awareness of the challenges ahead and an acceptance that further organisational 
development is likely to be required to meet them.   
 
Effective and strengthened financial management, the significant efficiency savings 
delivered, a well-developed trading approach to deliver income generation, and a 
prudent approach to risk have all helped the Council to respond well to the financial 
challenges to date.  Plans in place for the medium term beyond 2015/16 have helped 
to put the Council in a position of financial resilience relative to many other local 
authorities.  The Council is confident about its strategy which is predicated on further 
efficiency savings, increasing the business of traded services and other invest to save 
initiatives.  The strategy seems relevant and robust, but like most councils you will 
need to ensure the organisation is able to respond to unforeseen longer term 
scenarios and risks.   
 
The Council has a good understanding of the place, informed by robust analysis and 
consensus on the key challenges and priorities for the City.   There is an evidence-led 
approach to policy development and a corporate planning and delivery model which 
looks to align the Council’s priorities, organisational capacity and resources with the 
agreed priorities.  However, given the unique context and complex set of issues in 
Oxford, coupled with a diverse range of stakeholders and views, and political 
differences, there is inevitably less consensus and agreement about how to tackle 

17



  

4 

some of the key priorities, such as housing growth and economic development, and 
the pace at which this needs to be delivered.   
 
There are good examples of the Council working in partnership with others on shared 
agendas which you can build on. You have successfully engaged a range of 
organisations through a plethora of initiatives and projects to deliver positive 
outcomes, and the organisation is generally well respected by those it works with.  The 
Oxford Strategic Partnership, for example, appears to be well regarded as a 
mechanism for the key agencies and organisations in the City to come together to 
consider strategic issues and priorities.   
 
It is clear the Council is keen to provide strong and visible leadership to the city to 
enable the delivery of its ambitions.  To do this effectively an enhanced and more 
sophisticated influencing role by the City Council, as the ‘leader of place’, will be 
required we think.  Relationships based on mutual respect and shared understandings 
are of course critical to this.  Notwithstanding that the Council has promoted 
partnership working with the County Council and districts though the City Deal, 
Strategic Economic Plan and the development of the Growth Board, you are aware of 
the need to develop some of these key relationships further.    
 

Summary of feedback: priority setting, financial viability, leadership, governance 
and capacity to deliver future ambitions  

Understanding of local context and priority setting 
 
The Council has a clear and ambitious vision to ‘make Oxford a world-class city for all 
its citizens’.  This is well-articulated in your Corporate Plan, a document that has been 
developed with key stakeholders and in consultation with the people of the city.  The 
Council has a good grasp of the strategic challenges moving forward which is informed 
by a strong understanding of the local context.   Members, officers, partners and other 
stakeholders all spoke knowledgeably about the place and there is a consensus and 
widespread agreement and support for the five corporate priorities.  The focus on a 
vibrant and sustainable economy, meeting housing needs, strong and active 
communities, a cleaner greener Oxford, and an efficient and effective council all look 
relevant given the local context and challenges facing local government more widely.  
 
To deliver on the priorities the Council has shown a willingness to invest and operate 
beyond its ‘statutory’ remit.  Notable examples of this include the decision to invest in 
programmes to improve quality of teaching in primary schools, particularly in deprived 
areas, having identified that educational attainment in the City’s state schools is 
significantly below the national average.  In light of reduced direct spending by the 
County Council on services for young people in the City, you are also investing in your 
Youth Ambition Strategy.  This demonstrates the striving nature of the Council and we 

18



  

5 

recognise that this ambitious agenda is evidence-based and driven by your desire to 
address inequalities in life chances across the City.  We saw no signs that this 
investment and involvement currently risks dissipating the Council’s effectiveness, but 
like all authorities it would be prudent to keep priorities and investment in them under 
regular review to ensure they remain realistic, deliverable and sustainable.      
 
Given the complexity and uniqueness of the City (including a world renowned 
university sector, historical heritage, major tourist destination, and a stark demographic 
contrast with the rest of the county) it is understandable that, whilst there is general 
consensus on overall priorities, there are a diverse range of views and political 
differences about the City’s growth – particularly in terms of addressing the long term 
housing shortage - the actions and interventions required, and the pace at which 
things should happen.  The challenge for the Council - and one that you have 
recognised - is how best to use your democratic mandate to more effectively convene, 
co-ordinate and harness the range of aspirations, views, and ultimately resources 
directed to the economic development of the City.  We comment later in this letter 
about the further development of the Council’s ‘leader of place’ role.  
 
The vision for how the organisation needs to develop to move beyond being an 
effective and efficient service delivery organisation to become a true ‘leader of place 
was less clear to us.  The Council is clearly evolving into an efficient and productive 
organisation.  But is this going to be enough to deliver the leadership role required to 
realise the ambition of ‘making Oxford a world class city for all’?  We posed the 
question of whether the Council currently has the organisational structures, skills and 
capacity to make this step change?  We heard relatively little from officers and elected 
members about how the shape, style and role of the organisation would further evolve 
over the next few years, beyond the expansion of traded services and development of 
new revenue streams.  We suggest more narrative around this should be considered. 
This could help to both ‘test’ your capacity to deliver on this as well as develop a 
broader consensus amongst your partners about your emerging placed based 
leadership role. 
 
Financial planning and viability 
 
Financial management at Oxford has clearly been strengthened over the past few 
years.  Budget planning and performance monitoring have improved and helped the 
Council to achieve significant savings and develop a robust medium term plan. 
Impressive efficiency savings (approximately £8 million) have been realised over the 
past four years.  This has helped the organisation to minimise cuts to frontline 
services, whilst delivering significant new investment in the city’s infrastructure and 
avoiding compulsory redundancies.  All of this has combined to put the Council in a 
position of financial resilience, certainly when compared to many other local 
authorities.  We think you are well placed to respond to the continued financial 
challenges facing the sector.  

19



  

6 

 
Looking ahead, the Council has a solid and sound medium term financial plan in place, 
and a balanced budget is set out for the next four years.  The strategy includes further 
efficiencies, but is largely predicated on further increasing income generation through 
an expansion of traded services and new revenue streams, as part of your ‘public 
enterprise’ ethos.  Given the track record of the Council’s services trading 
successfully, we think this is realistic and robust, and seems to be a logical direction of 
travel.    It is nonetheless a strategy with some potential risks, and there are some 
possible scenarios that might threaten the plan such as increased competition from 
other providers.  We asked whether there needs to be more of a ‘plan B’ should the 
projected increased income generation not be realised in the longer term? There may 
be potential to develop a Commercial Strategy that brings together the three main 
areas of income – i.e. from council assets, by trading with other councils or other parts 
of the public sector and through selling commodities e.g. recyclables. 
 
The Council rightly sees creating a vibrant and sustainable local economy as a key 
part of the overall financial strategy, including rebalancing the distribution of 
employment so there is less dependency on public sector jobs.  Collaboration with 
neighbouring councils and partners through the LEP and City Deal has secured 
external funding to enable the growth of the knowledge based economy and tourism.  
The Council itself is providing apprenticeships and increasing its’ spend with small and 
medium sized businesses in the city.  All of this is noteworthy.  
 
You also have an ambitious capital programme to dispose of underused assets and 
make significant revenue contributions, as well as helping enable an injection of more 
than £130 million of capital investment into the city’s infrastructure.   However, some 
elements of the programme are proving difficult to deliver.  We heard that the 
programme was frequently under-delivered over the past few years. Part of the issue 
may be down to it being too ambitious, but it also appears that you need to invest in 
more skills and capacity. This could be by bringing in temporary or interim capacity or 
more formal joint venture or framework type arrangements to help deliver the 
programme.  Either way, the issue clearly needs addressing as the delivery of your 
capital programme is an important part of both the Council’s financial strategy and the 
delivery of key priorities.  
 
The approach to risk and contingency planning to date has helped encourage the 
development and implementation of new and innovative projects and schemes.   The 
levels of contingency required were rightly prudent, but with a growing track record of 
delivery and many of the key financial risks mitigated, you are now sensibly reviewing 
whether contingency levels for new schemes can be set lower. In theory at least this 
should release more resources to support the delivery of priorities through other 
projects and activities.  Nevertheless, with a major investment programme including 
significant regeneration schemes in play, and coming on-stream, it will be sensible to 
regularly consider the financial risk the Council carries on these.    

20



  

7 

 
Political and managerial leadership of the organisation:  
 
The Council is benefitting from strong, stable and visible political and managerial 
leadership.  This is widely appreciated by staff and partners and helps cultivate a well-
motivated, enthusiastic workforce and a positive energy and culture across the 
Council.  There is a good understanding amongst elected members and officers of the 
respective leadership roles and responsibilities, underpinned by good member-officer 
relationships. Arrangements are in place to facilitate a regular dialogue between 
directors, service managers and portfolio holders.  The development of portfolio plans 
will help progress to be jointly monitored.  
 
There is a clear desire to develop relationships and mutual understanding between 
officers and elected members further.  You rightly see this as critical to further 
enhancing the effective and productive culture being developed at Oxford.   For 
example, you are developing the ‘member guarantee’ to set out minimum standards 
for responding to member queries and questions.  We think there is potential to do 
even more here, such as including elected members in the programme of ‘soft skills’ 
training you run for frontline officers,  providing ‘political nous’ sessions for officers 
perhaps through joint officer/member sessions and further improving induction for new 
members.   
 
Management structures were last reviewed in 2007, which resulted in a significant 
reduction in management posts and a flatter structure created.  The current structure 
seems to be serving the organisation well, particularly in terms of providing stability.  
The numbers of management posts does not appear to be out of kilter with other 
district councils, especially considering the ambitious and complex agenda the 
Council is delivering.    Nonetheless you will undoubtedly wish to keep structures, 
capacity and skills to drive the new ways of working under review.  Your proposal for 
a review every three years to ensure that the structure is fit for purpose in light of 
future fiscal and policy challenges appears prudent to us.  
 
There are clearly good and productive working relationships with trade unions, 
helped in part by the clear public service ethos and ‘public enterprise’ ideology of the 
administration.  The relationship and mature engagement have helped you 
successfully introduce and implement innovative pay deals and new staff initiatives, 
some of which are impressive.  Aside from producing notable practice and outcomes, 
this is helping to provide stability through the change process.   
 
The benefits of cross party engagement are recognised by members and officers.  You 
are keen that timely and genuine opportunities are provided for non-executive 
members to inform policy development and there are various arrangements and fora 
to help enable this, including the Cross Party Working Group, Scrutiny and all Member 
Briefing sessions.  Backbench policy leads and champions for key issues and areas of 

21



  

8 

business – such as ‘older citizens’ and ‘mental health’ – have been appointed by the 
Executive and are helping to provide additional political leadership capacity, as well as 
opportunities for personal development and potential succession planning.  Given the 
Cross Party Working Group was introduced some time ago to facilitate consistency in 
policy development in a period of political instability you may wish to review it to 
ensure it is still meeting the needs of all parties. 
 
Governance and decision-making 
 
The Council is obviously committed to ensuring sound governance, good ethical 
standards and transparency.  The comprehensive review of decision-making 
arrangements and a fundamental refresh of the Constitution undertaken in 2012 have 
brought about improved and more streamlined decision-making arrangements.  Whilst 
we did not examine your governance arrangements in detail, the processes and 
protocols one would expect to see in a well-functioning local authority look to be in 
place at Oxford and the most recent Annual Governance Statement did not identify 
any major issues of concern.  You are clearly a Council that seeks regular external 
challenge and validation, evidenced by the abundance of awards and accreditations 
achieved over the past few years across a number of service areas.   
 
There are, though, facets of the current governance and decision-making 
arrangements that could be further developed we think.  Systems of political 
delegation need regular review.  In particular there is scope to further enhance and 
improve the opportunities for all members and communities to inform and influence 
decision making and policy development.  For example the role of Scrutiny could have 
a more proactive improvement focus, and be a conduit for communities of interest.  
Currently the emphasis appears to be on a holding to account role.  Whilst this is a 
valid and important function, there may be a greater impact if Scrutiny became more of 
a conduit for communities and played a bigger and earlier part in the policy 
development process. We heard mixed views about the current practice of all Cabinet 
reports being submitted to the Labour Group and the perception that this slowed the 
decision-making process.  If this is an issue, consideration could be given to the 
creation of Delegation Sub-Committees for individual Portfolio Holders to deal with day 
to day issues 
 
There appeared to be a large number of forums and meetings, perhaps unsurprisingly 
given the ambitious and complex agenda at Oxford.  This wasn’t something that came 
up as a major theme during our visit but nonetheless, we think there is an opportunity 
to rationalise the number of officer boards and partnership working arrangements.  It is 
sensible for any organisation to regularly review and rationalise the number of 
meetings, forums, boards, panels and committees to ensure they all serve a current 
purpose and add value.     
 

22



  

9 

You have evidently made improvements to the elected member induction and 
development programme and there is some notable practice including new members 
having an officer ‘buddy’ assigned to them, and linking attendance at compulsory 
training (code of conduct, licensing, planning) to the member allowance scheme.  We 
liked the introduction of a short induction film from the Chief Executive and Directors 
explaining what they do, and you may wish to consider video recording the monthly 
member briefing sessions to increase their coverage (we understand that only about 
25% of councillors currently attend the sessions).  We questioned whether more can 
be done to tailor the ongoing member development programme to the needs of 
individual members, perhaps through personal development planning.   
 
Capacity to deliver   
 
The Council has made notable investment in its staff which is enabling the workforce 
to be motivated and proud to work for the Council and City.  We were impressed with 
the ‘partnership payment’ linked to savings, performance and attendance targets.  The 
pay deal negotiated outside the national agreement which provides staff an annual 
1.5% cost of living increase for the next four years in exchange for no strikes is clearly 
helping to create stability and certainty. Reward and recognition mechanisms, flexible 
working practices, the creation of modern office environments, and investment in staff 
health and well-being initiatives, all appear to be helping to raise staff morale and 
reduce sickness absence.  You rightly recognise the importance of organisational 
culture and your values focusing on providing excellent public service seem well 
embedded following the launch of the Council’s Values and Behavioural Framework 
last year.   
 
The Council makes good use of external expertise and capacity, recognising that 
new and sometimes temporary skill sets are required to deliver its ambitions, 
priorities, and new agendas.  Growing the sales expertise of the Direct Services 
Organisation (DSO) on an ‘invest to save’ contract, ensuring school improvement 
expertise and joint posts relating to the city centre development are good examples 
of this happening.  Given that, as one person put it, ‘ambition is always slightly 
ahead of capacity’ there may be a need for the Council to draw on more external 
specialist knowledge and skills, for example major capital programme management.   
 
More generally we think you will need to ensure workforce development keeps pace 
with the pressures and challenges faced by the organisation.   There is a clear 
aspiration to expand traded services and develop new revenue streams.  But 
developing further narrative about how the organisation needs to develop to move 
beyond being an effective and efficient public service delivery organisation to 
become a ‘leader of place’ might help inform the debate on the future organisational 
structures, skills and capacity required.     
 

23



  

10 

In the meantime there is potentially more to be done by the Council to maintain and 
foster a ‘one council’ and partnership approach to delivering shared services and 
priorities.   For many smaller delivery partners the Council still appears siloed - for 
example experiencing different commissioning practice and processes across 
different services and departments.   
 
There is also we think, some potential tension between expanding the Council’s role 
as a ‘seller of services’ and being seen as a ‘partner of choice’.   When a local 
authority is trading services there is an obvious danger it might be perceived as an 
organisation promoting its’ services, and indeed a view expressed by some partners 
was that sometimes in their dealings with the Council they are not always sure 
‘which hat is on’ (managing development within the city Vs promoting traded 
services) and this can create tension.  We know you have created a ‘Direct 
Services’ brand for your trading activity and it will we think be increasingly important 
to ensure this is the brand used to sell and promote services.  
 
Leadership of place: community engagement 
 
You have rightly acknowledged a need to look at how the Council engages with its 
various communities across the City, including the need to target areas of 
deprivation and build on the Council’s track record of working with local people to 
develop strong and active communities.   Area Committees were disbanded as part 
of the Governance Review in 2012, and notwithstanding the role of the frontline 
councillors in leading and engaging their communities, the Customer Contact 
Strategy, and mechanisms already in place, you are keen to develop the 
organisation’s current approach.    
 
We know the City Executive Board considered a proposed Community Engagement 
Policy Statement (at its meeting on 3rd July).  This provides a good starting point 
setting out a framework and sound principles for how the Council engages with its 
residents and communities to develop a greater understanding of their needs, and 
to increase the level and quality of involvement in the decisions that affect their 
lives.  
 
In light of the complex and overlapping communities of place, interest and identity 
that characterise Oxford, you are understandably keen to adopt a proportionate and 
targeted approach to engagement, albeit ensuring there is a co-ordinated and 
coherent programme approach that is adequately resourced. 
 
In developing this further we suggest a need to consider: 
 

 The purpose of the engagement activity:  is the engagement about consulting, 
communication, decision-making, empowerment, capacity building/development 
or promoting social cohesion?  

24



  

11 

 

 What is already happening: is there a clear and comprehensive understanding 
of what other organisations and agencies are doing?  Is there scope to harness 
and build on existing activity as leader of place?  

 

 The role of the frontline councillor and how it might be further developed and 
supported, in light of the expectations and getting the right balance between 
representative and participative democracy. 

 

 Further developing the intelligence led approach – building on the excellent 
social research and high quality quantitative data already provided – perhaps by 
providing more local and neighbourhood or area based analysis to inform local 
councillors and their communities.  

 

 Harnessing the digital agenda and new technologies: whilst you are committed 
to continue to use multiple engagement channels, is there scope to become 
more ‘digital by default’?  

 

 The potential for more co-production:  building on the neighbourhood 
management approach already deployed in some areas of the City (e.g. Barton) 
where residents work in partnership with mainstream service providers on local 
priorities, but moving beyond this to genuine empowering of volunteers and 
building the capacity and resilience of communities to do more for themselves.   

 

 The capacity of the Council to respond to the engagement it undertakes:  the 
Community Engagement Policy acknowledges the principle of feedback, and 
the importance of policy-makers being prepared to change their plans as a 
result of community engagement.  But how far is the Council willing to allow 
local tailoring of service delivery in different communities?   

 
Leadership of Place: partnership working and collaboration 
 
There are already good examples of partnership working and an appetite and 
willingness from a wide range of partners to work collaboratively on shared agendas 
through a range of strategic, delivery and community partnerships and joint 
ventures.   These are enabling a range of impressive activity and outcomes, 
including physical regeneration, carbon reduction and community safety.    
 
You are keen to consolidate and grow the recognised city leadership role the 
Council plays to further develop credibility with major partners and stakeholders.  
There is understandably a diverse range of views, and political differences, about 
how to tackle some of the key priorities, particularly housing growth within and 
beyond the city’s boundaries, that are key to realising the Council’s ambitions.   
There is recognition that relationships with neighbouring councils and the County 

25



  

12 

Council in particular will be essential to deliver the housing growth and economic 
regeneration aspirations to create a world class City and through consolidating the 
Oxford brand.  Working to develop more of a political understanding and consensus 
with the County and District Leaders will be critical, and might perhaps be best 
negotiated on specific critical matters and practical issues rather than on broad 
strategy or ideology.   
  
An enhanced influencing role will be critical to leading a world class city (locally, 
nationally and internationally).  We suggest this should  include a more 
comprehensive approach to winning ‘hearts and minds’ and nurturing relationships, 
accepting that some stakeholders will need more than a clear evidence base to be 
convinced of the need for change and the pace required. 

 
A wider and more sophisticated approach to corporate affairs and communications 
will also be required, one that goes beyond the traditional means of formal 
communications and includes the ‘soft’ channels and ‘behind the scenes’ activity 
including lobbying, stakeholder mapping, and relationship management.  You are 
already doing elements of this but we suggest it will need developing further.  This 
is likely to develop into an approach akin to the ‘head of corporate affairs’ role to be 
found in many large private sector organisations that may need to call on additional 
and/or different skills, resources, and capacity.   

More could be done to improve the understanding of delivery partners, large and 
small, of the City agenda and the role and contribution they each make to it.   Many 
of the partners we engaged with during the peer challenge process welcomed the 
opportunity of hearing from other partners and were keen to explore potential 
relationships, linkages and opportunities for collaboration.  As the ‘leader of place’, it 
may be worth considering some kind of forum, outside of decision-making 
partnerships and their formal governance arrangements, that provides an 
opportunity for partners to come together to do this on, say, a six-monthly basis.  

In pursuing your ambitions and priorities, we think there will be a need to become 
increasingly clear about when you are being the ‘leader of place’ or when you are a 
‘seller of services’ given that the respective roles/functions of the Council will 
undoubtedly ramp up over the next few years. We have mentioned the importance 
of brand and identity earlier in this letter.  

Our key recommendations 

The peer team developed some key suggestions for you to consider.  These are based 
on what we saw, heard and read.  Drawing on our experience of the sector and 
knowledge of local government improvement, we have made several suggestions 
throughout the letter of things you may wish to consider.  The following are the key 
things we think will help you progress the work you have embarked upon:  

26



  

13 

1. Capitalise on the external awards and accolades to further strengthen the 
Council’s reputation and credibility to deliver for the City. 

2. Continue to further improve organisational efficiency and grow capacity in order 
to meet your growing ambitions. 

3. Better co-ordinate partner involvement to harness energy, commitment, and 
resources of partners. 

4. Further develop your influencing role and strategy through a more sophisticated 
and wider approach to corporate affairs, communications and branding, and in 
doing this be clear what the purpose of the influencing is 

 

Next steps 

You will undoubtedly wish to reflect on these findings and suggestions made with 
your senior managerial and political leadership before determining how the Council 
wishes to take things forward.  As part of the peer challenge process, there is an 
offer of continued activity to support this, and I know that you are keen to invite the 
peer team back to help the Council to maintain focus and momentum. In the 
meantime we are keen to continue the relationship we have formed with you and 
colleagues through the peer challenge to date. We will endeavour to provide further 
information and signposting on the above to help inform your ongoing consideration 
and thinking.   
 
I thought it helpful to provide contact details for Mona Sehgal who, as you know, is 
our Principal Adviser (South East).  Mona can be contacted via email at 
mona.sehgal@local.gov.uk   (or tel. 07795 291006).  She is the main contact 
between your authority and the Local Government Association.  Hopefully this 
provides you with a convenient and continued route of access to the Local 
Government Association, its resources and any further support. 
 
All of us connected with the peer challenge would like to wish you every success going 
forward.  Once again, many thanks to you and your colleagues for inviting the peer 
challenge and to everyone involved for their participation.   
 
Paul Clarke - Programme Manager (Local Government Support) 
Local Government Association 
On behalf of the peer challenge team 

27

mailto:mona.sehgal@local.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

Home > Newsroom > Our Awards

News

Our Awards
Corporate Awards

The MJ Achievement Awards 2014 - June
2014
The Council won the Best Achieving Council
category at the MJ Achievement Awards 2014.

The Council won for achieving strong and
strengthening in-house services, with a core focus
on inward investment and growth in the city.

The Council is in a solid financial position and is
investing in critical initiatives to meet housing
needs and build a stronger local economy and a
safer and more active community.

The Council was also commended in the Workforce Transformation category.

Investors In People Gold - July 2014
The City Council has joined an elite group of
organisations across the UK by achieving the
Investors in People Gold standard.

Only 7 per cent of accredited organisations have
attained the gold standard for their commitment to
realising staff potential and understanding that it is
good people who make great business.

 

 

Living Wage Accreditation for Oxford -
October 2012
Oxford City Council was awarded Living Wage
Accreditation by the national Living Wage
Foundation.
 
The Living Wage for a city or region is based on
an assessment of the real costs of living in that
area, rather than the floor tariffs established by the
National Minimum Wage.

The Council adopted a Living Wage policy in 2009
for its own employees and for contractors who work for the Council. The Living Wage sets the
minimum hourly rate of pay for Council staff.

Investors in People (IIP) Accreditation -
June 2011
The Council achieved recognition as an Investor in
People organisation, and in doing so made the
Council a better place to work.

This award recognises our good work in
communicating with our employees, driving
improvement, delivering results and our focus on
developing our staff. We are aiming for IiP Gold in
May 2014.

Newsroom

News Archive

Your Oxford - Council
Newsletter

Social Media

Advertise with us

Events calendar

Communications Office

Our Awards

Local and National
News Links

Neighbourhood
Discussion Forums

Hot topics

Jobs

Recycling and rubbish
collection days

Leisure centres

Visiting Oxford

Council meetings

Oxford Town Hall

How do you rate this page?

  
What's this?

Advertise with us

     

Home All council services > Do it online > About Oxford > Jobs Commercial services Contact us

Accessibility FAQs A to Z Site Map Cookies Speak this page ))) Search

OXFORD
CITY

COUNCIL

29

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/news.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/OurAwards.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/news.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/PressReleaseArchive.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Your_Oxford_-_Council_Newsletter_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/SocialNetworking.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Advertisewithus.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decE/eventscalendar.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Communications_Office_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/OurAwards.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Local_and_National_News_Links_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Neighbourhood_Discussion_Forums_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/news.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/PressReleaseArchive.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Your_Oxford_-_Council_Newsletter_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Your_Oxford_-_Council_Newsletter_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/SocialNetworking.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Advertisewithus.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decE/eventscalendar.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Communications_Office_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/OurAwards.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Local_and_National_News_Links_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Local_and_National_News_Links_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Neighbourhood_Discussion_Forums_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/Neighbourhood_Discussion_Forums_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Jobs_and_Careers_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decER/Refuse_collection_days_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decER/Refuse_collection_days_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decLP/Leisure_Centres_and_Swimming_Pools_occw.htm
http://www.visitoxfordandoxfordshire.com/
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decCD/councilmeetings.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decTH/Oxford_Town_Hall_occw.htm
https://websurveys.servmetric.com/theme/gm/1035?Q_RATINGID=3
https://websurveys.servmetric.com/theme/gm/1035?Q_RATINGID=2
https://websurveys.servmetric.com/theme/gm/1035?Q_RATINGID=4
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/CustomerFeedback.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/advertise
http://www.facebook.com/OxfordCityCouncil
http://twitter.com/OxfordCity
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decN/SocialNetworking.htm
http://googleads.g.doubleclick.net/aclk?sa=L&ai=BdEa7Qhl3VOKWBYf87QbR0oC4AfzJrIsGAAAAEAEghJeZGzgAWPTDxK0wYLuOtIPQCrIBEXd3dy5veGZvcmQuZ292LnVrugEJZ2ZwX2ltYWdlyAED2gEfaHR0cDovL3d3dy5veGZvcmQuZ292LnVrL2F3YXJkc6kCLFXS3CRsuj7AAgLgAgDqAhxDVFlDMDEwX1BCLU94Zm9yZENpdHlDb3VuY2ls-AL30R6QA9AFmAPQBagDAcgDnQTQBJBO4AQBkAYBoAYU&num=0&cid=5GgBMKTPFPpFW8imjTGQFXIw&sig=AOD64_0TN5t4-DZfryqOW5raXwx7FAAE_A&client=ca-pub-9003971709719446&adurl=http://shop.unicef.org.uk/cards-stationery-gift-wrap/intro
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/mainmenu.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/doitonline
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/mainmenu.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Jobs_and_Careers_occw.htm
http://www.oxforddirectservices.co.uk/
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Contactus.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/accessibility.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/FAQs.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/atoz.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Site_map_occw.htm
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Cookies.htm
javascript:clickToListen.listenToSection('contentcolumn')
javascript:clickToListen.listenToSection('contentcolumn')
javascript:clickToListen.listenToSection('contentcolumn')
javascript:clickToListen.listenToSection('contentcolumn')
javascript:$('#search').submit();
javascript:$('#search').submit();
emma.mace_3
Text Box
APPENDIX TWO



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

 

Cleaner, Greener Oxford

Public Sector Sustainability Awards 2014 - November 2014
We picked up the award for the Most Sustainable Public Sector Organisation in the Local Authority
category at the Public Sector Sustainability Awards in London. 

This was the most hotly contested category according to the organisers, and we were delighted to
have won. Our nomination was based on the whole breadth of work we have done around
renewables, energy efficiency, waste reduction, people engagement, transport, Low Carbon Oxford
and OxFutures. 

Green Apple Environment Awards - November 2014
We won the Silver Green Apple Award in the Local Authority category for our work on reducing
carbon mainly due to our Direct Services team gaining and maintaining ISO 14401 accreditation.

This was presented on Monday 10 November 2014 at the Houses of Parliament.

The Green Apple Awards campaign was one of the first to be accepted by Britain's RSA
Environmental Awards Forum as meeting the high standards and criteria to be approved as an
automatic conduit into the Brussels-led European Business Awards for the Environment.

Local Authority Recycling Advisory Committee (LARAC) Celebration Awards
2014 - October 2014
The Council won the Recycling Officer of the Year category and were finalists in the Team of the
Year category at the Local Authority Recycling Advisory Committee (LARAC) awards 2014.

Now in its fourth year, the awards ceremony recognise the achievements and hard work of local
authority recycling officers and their colleagues over the past year.

Thames and Chilterns in Bloom Awards 2014 - September 2014
Oxford won a Gold Award in the City category at the Thames and Chilterns in Bloom Association
awards 2014.

It also won the overall award for the City category at the awards.

The annual Britain in Bloom campaign is the largest horticultural event in Europe and attracts over
2,000 entries from cities, towns and villages across Britain. The main aim of the campaign is to
encourage and celebrate local communities improving their local environments.

UK Community Energy Awards 2014 -
September 2014
The Council was awarded Local Authority Partner
of the Year at the UK Community Energy Awards
2014.

The award was for local authorities which go the
extra mile to help local, community energy
organisations through partnering and investing in
community energy organisations.

 

Green Flag Awards - July 2014
Five of Oxford's parks were awarded Green Flag status for the second year running. Blackbird
Leys, Cutteslowe & Sunnymead, Hinksey, Florence and Bury Knowle parks have all retained this
prestigious award following this year's re-assessments.

The Green Flag Award was founded in 1996 as a way of recognising the best green spaces
throughout the country. It has now come to be the international standard for parks and green
spaces in Europe.

The award also helps the public to strive for high environmental standards, creating an area of
natural beauty in recreational spaces.

 

Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE)
Thames Valley Awards - June 2014
The Council was part of a partnership that won the 30



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

Environmental Engineering and Sustainability
award for the Kennington Road Flood Alleviation
works in Oxford.

The team behind that winning project were
Optimise (Water) LLP, Thames Water, the
Environment Agency, Network Rail, Oxfordshire
County Council, Oxford City Council, and the Vale
of the White Horse District Council.

 

Green Fleet of the year Award
Nomination - February 2014
Oxford City Council was shortlisted for the Fleet
News 'Green Fleet of the Year Award'.

The Fleet News Awards recognise the best people,
companies and vehicles in the fleet industry.

The Green Fleet of the Year award rewards
forward looking fleets that have introduced
initiatives to reduce their CO2 emissions year-on-
year, delivering financial and environmental
benefits.

Association of Public Sector Excellence
(APSE) Award - December 2013
Oxford City Council won the prestigious
Association of Public Sector Excellence (APSE)
award for Most Improved Performer in the Refuse
Collection category.

Oxford City Council were shortlisted in seven
categories for the awards where the best
performing and most improved local authorities are
awarded for their achievements.

The teams nominated were: Building Maintenance (Best Performer), Cemetery and Crematorium
Services (Best Performer), Parks, Open Spaces & Horticultural Services (Most Improved
Performer), Refuse Collection (Best Performer and Most Improved Performer),  Street Cleansing
(Best Performer) and Transport Operations & Vehicle Maintenance (Best Performer).

Thames and Chiltern in Bloom 2013
Regional Awards - September 2013
Oxford won the City category at the Thames and
Chiltern in Bloom 2013 Regional Awards.

Oxford won their category with a Silver Gilt and
improved their score by 10 points from last year,
beating off competition from Reading. 

Silver Gilt is awarded to a high standard entry,
which meets virtually all of the judging criteria and
exemplifies best practice in multiple areas.

Loo of the Year Awards 2013
Oxford City Council made it into the top ten for the best local authority toilets in the country, as
announced at the 2013 Loo of the Year Awards.

 

Fleet Hero Award Runner Up - December 2013
Oxford City Council was awarded runner up in the Plugged-In Fleets category of the 2013 Energy
Saving Trust Fleet Hero awards.

The Fleet Hero Awards celebrate public and private organisations that are successfully reducing
fuel bills and lowering their own travel-related carbon emissions.

British Water and Wastewater Industries Awards - November 201331



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

The Oxford Area Flood Partnership and contractors Optimise have been highly commended at a
prestigious Society of British Water and Wastewater Industries Awards for delivering a complex
project that reduces the risk of flooding in the Kennington Road area of Oxford.

Twenty properties suffered from the misery of repeated internal flooding; many more properties,
over a wide area, were at risk of flooding and a main road and rail line into Oxford also flooded.

The Partnership involved Oxford City Council, Oxfordshire County Council, The Vale of White
Horse District Council, The Environment Agency, Network Rail and Thames Water. Construction
work started in earnest in April 2013 and finished two months ahead of schedule at the end of
August 2013.

Green Flag Awards for 5 Oxford parks -
July 2013 
Blackbird Leys Park has become the fifth park in
the city to receive a Green Flag Award. The park
now joins Cutteslowe & Sunnymead, Hinksey,
Florence and Bury Knowle parks that have all
retained this prestigious award following this year's
re-assessments.
 
The Green Flag Award was founded in 1996 as a
way of recognising the best green spaces
throughout the country. It has now come to be the
international standard for parks and green spaces in Europe.
 
The award also helps the public to strive for high environmental standards, creating an area of
natural beauty in recreational spaces.

Oxford ReFashion event wins Green
Apple Award - September 2012
Oxford City Council's ReFashion event has won a
Green Apple Environment Award in the national
campaign to find Britain's greenest companies,
councils and communities.
 
The popular fashion event in January received
over 700 visitors and was acknowledged as a
highly innovative, fun and inclusive way of
highlighting textile re-use and recycling options and
the need to reduce textile waste sent to landfill.

Association for Public Service Excellence
Nomination - August 2012
The Streetscene team have been shortlisted by the
Association for Public Service Excellence for the
Best Service Team Street Cleaning and
Streetscene category. 

It means that the team are rated in the top six
authorities in the whole of Great Britain and in the
top three in England.

 

Green flag status for four Oxford Parks -
July 2012
Cutteslowe and Sunnymead Park, Hinksey Park
and Florence Park have retained their Green Flag
status for the fifth year in a row.

Bury Knowle Park has retained its Green Flag
status for the second year running.

The achievement means that these parks are
among the best parks and green spaces in the
country. 

The Green Flag Award is the national standard for parks and green spaces in England and Wales
and recognises and rewards the best green spaces in the country.

32



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

 

Efficient Effective Council

Best Web Experience Award - November 2014
Our Business Improvement & Technology Team won an award from Kana (providers of the
Council's Lagan CRM software) in the category of Best Web Experience.
 
This is a multinational competition that includes both private and public sector users of Lagan
CRM.

Council Shortlisted for Living Wage Champion award - October 2014
Oxford City Council was shortlisted for the Living Wage Champion 2014 award for South East
Engand.

Run by the Living Wage Foundation, the awards recognise employers that have made great
contributions to communities and industries by implementing and celebrating the Living Wage.

Customer Service Excellence Re-accreditation - June 2014
Customer Service Excellence is a standard used to make improvements within organisations
based on customer feedback and understanding the users experience in order to improve the
service given.

It gives us national recognition showing that we put customers at the heart of what we do.

The Customer Contact Team met all the requirements in the assessment as well as two additional
'Compliance Plus' best practice standards.

Institute of Rating, Revenues and Valuation Awards - October 2014
Oxford City Council was nominated for 4 awards at the Institute of Rating, Revenues and
Valuation awards which took place on 7 October 2014 in the following categories:

Benefits Team for Most Improved Team of the Year
Excellence in Social Inclusion
Excellence In Partnership Working (Public)
Excellence in Staff Development

The Council won the Excellence in Partnership Working award, got a silver in the Excellence in
Staff Development category and a bronze in the Most Improved Team of the Year award.

2014 Local Government Chronicle Awards Nominations - January 2014
Oxford City Council was selected as a finalist in the two categories at the 2014 Local Government
Chronicle Awards.

The Investigation Team and the Welfare Reform team were both shortlisted in two separate
categories for the awards.

The Investigation Team was shortlisted for the Tackling Fraud Award.

The Welfare Reform Team was shortlisted with their entry Universal Credit LA Led Pilot for the
Team of the Year Award.

GeoPlace Exemplar Awards 2013
Oxford City Council was a runner up of the 2014 GeoPlace Exemplar Awards, showcasing the
innovation and value local authorities deliver in managing and using their address and street
information.

Customer Service Excellence Standard -
July 2013
Oxford City Council's Customer Contact Team,
which is responsible for resolving over 90% of all
council enquiries that come into our two face-to-
face customer service centres and our telephone
contact centre, received the Customer Service
Excellence Standard.

Customer Service Excellence is a standard used to
make improvements within organisations based on
customer feedback and understanding the users
experience in order to improve the service given.

National Payroll Awards Team of the Year - October 201233



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

The Chartered Institute of Payroll Professionals (CIPP) held the the 28th Annual Payroll and
Pensions Conference and Exhibition on 4 and 5 October 2012 at the Celtic Manor Resort in
Wales. At the event, the biggest for the industry, the CIPP hold their Annual Payroll and Pensions
Awards, acknowledging payroll and pensions professionals for their achievements over the last 12
months.

Individuals, employers and software providers are invited to submit entries in a number of
categories, and from these a panel of 10 judges draw up a shortlist of entries. In front of over 400
fellow professionals the Council's payroll team were awarded the 2012 'Team of the Year' award.

Lexcel accreditation for Legal Services Team - November 2011
Oxford City Council's Legal Services team has passed its annual Lexcel
accreditation - the Law Society's practice management standard.

The standard assesses client care and file and practice management. The
same standards apply for all legal practices and firms, whether in the private or public sector.

Payroll Quality Partnership (PQP)
accreditation
Our Payroll Team have achieved Payroll Quality
Partnership (PQP) accreditation. This is a
nationally recognised standards-based quality
accreditation from the Chartered Institute of Payroll
Professionals.

The accreditation is designed to help organisations
get the most benefit from their payroll function by
encouraging them to maintain professional
competence while enhancing and developing
payroll skills and knowledge. This in turn enables payroll professionals to provide their customers
with the highest level of value and service possible through effective payroll learning and
development.

The PQP is valid for a period of two years.

Parks Service BM TRADA Accredited -
March 2011
Getting BM TRADA accreditation demonstrates
that the management system in our Parks Service
meets the requirements of a given standard.

ISO 9001:2008 specifies requirements for a quality
management system where an organization:

needs to demonstrate its ability to
consistently provide product that meets
customer and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements, and
aims to enhance customer satisfaction through the effective application of the system,
including processes for continual improvement of the system and the assurance of
conformity to customer and applicable statutory and regulatory requirements.

Improvement and Efficiency Awards 2013
Oxford City Council won a number of awards in three different categories in the Improvement and
Efficiency Awards: Working Together (Gold Award) and three Bronze Awards in Transformation in
Waste and Environment, Delivering Through Efficiency and Working together.

 

Strong Active Communities

Association for Public Service Excellence
Awards - September 2014
The Council was nominated in six categories in the
Association for Public Service Excellence (APSE)
awards 2014 and won the Best Service Team
Sports, Leisure & Culture category and Best 34



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

Service Team Transport & Fleet category.

The awards recognise the very best in local
government frontline services, with councils
throughout the UK recognised for their
achievements in delivering excellence in frontline
service.

Big Car Project wins national award -
April 2011
A team from Oxford Adult Learners received a
national award from ASDAN on 28 April at a
celebration event, in recognition of their project to
build a large model MINI car.  

Neil Stevenson, our Community Engagement
Partnership Officer worked with the team, who
researched the history of the Cowley car factory,
to help them create the model.  The model car
was a highlight of the 2010 Christmas Light Night
parade and has exhibited in the Museum of Oxford and the Town Hall gallery.  

 

Meeting Housing Need

Planning Awards - November 2014
Barton Park, the planned neighbourhood to the north east of Oxford, won the award for 'Planning
for Housing Growth' at the 2014 Planning Awards.

The judges were impressed by excellent partnership between private and public sectors to enable
growth, and to create a garden city suburb in Oxford. 

The development, which is being delivered by Barton Oxford LLP, a joint venture by Oxford City
Council and Grosvenor Development Limited, will provide up to 885 new homes, a food store,
primary school and new community facilities including a linear park.

Placemaking Award - February 2014
Planners at Oxford City Council have won the
Development Management Award at the inaugural
Placemaking Awards.

The award recognises an authority which has
clearly demonstrated how outstanding development
management has been used to improve the
physical or environmental quality of a place or the
economic or social well-being of its community, or
to create excellent prospects of such improvement.

Oxford City Council's nomination related to the
way in which the service had delivered much needed housing, in particular affordable housing over
the last year which culminated with 'Super September' where planning permissions were secured
for 1204 homes, 614 of which were affordable.

 

Strong Vibrant Economy

Oxford awarded Purple Flag - November
2011
Oxford city centre has been awarded the
prestigious Purple Flag for the quality of the
evening and night time activities that are on offer,35



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

and the cooperation between the Council, the
police and the establishments which provide
entertainment of many different types in managing
the central area. 

The Purple Flag award means that Oxford city centre has been nationally recognised as offering
an excellent night-time economy, only one of six towns and cities to be recognised with this
honour. 

The scheme assesses each areas crime rates, hygiene standards and a range of visitor
attractions.

National recognition for the Council - October 2013
Oxford City Council received three awards for their work in the community.
 
Our Welfare Reform Team achieved national recognition at the Institute of Revenues, Rating and
Valuation (IRRV) Performance Awards for Excellence in Social Inclusion and Excellence in
Innovation (Non IT). The awards recognise our team's work to mitigate the impacts of welfare
reforms in Oxford residents.

Rob Walsh, from the Anti-Social Behaviour Investigation Team was awarded the Tim Winter award
which is a national award for anti-social behaviour practitioners.
 
And Liz Jones, Domestic Abuse Co-ordinator received the John Latham Award from Thames
Valley Police for her work on tackling domestic abuse in Oxford.

 

Page last updated 27 November 2014

36



Our Awards

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/awards[27/11/2014 12:38:37]

Contact Us

Self service: Online services | Telephone: 01865 249811 | Where to find our offices 

Copyright © 2012 Oxford City Council, Town Hall, St Aldate's, Oxford, OX1 1BX.
Designed and hosted by Oxford Information Labs Limited.

 

Share

0

37

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/doitonline
http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decVanilla/Where_To_Find_Our_Offices_occw.htm
http://www.oxil.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                                                                            
 
To:  Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date:  8 December 2014              

 
Report of:  Streetscene Direct Services 
 
Title of Report:  Clean Streets 
 

 
Summary 

 
Purpose of report:  To respond to specific issues raised by Scrutiny 
Committee members regarding Streetscene operations 
          
Key decision   No  
 
Executive lead member:  Councillor John Tanner 
 
Report author:  Doug Loveridge 
 
Policy Framework:  Cleaner Greener Oxford 
 

 
 
Background  
The Scrutiny Committee requested a report and discussion to address some 
specific issues that Members have raised. These are listed and addressed in 
the main body of the report below.  
 
Body of the report  
 
1. Members are concerned that the City Council was not meeting its 

detritus performance target for quarter 1, and have requested more 
information about why this is and which streets regularly fail to meet 
the Grade B standard. 
 

2. The Direct Services Streetscene Team were heavily involved in 
responding to flood prevention and more importantly the major clear up of 
flood affected areas across the City. Over 2000 hours of labour resource 
was diverted from their normal scheduled work of keeping the streets 

 

39

Agenda Item 5



clean in terms of litter and detritus during the deep cleaning of flood 
affected areas. 

 
3. This necessary diversion of resource led to other areas falling below the 

high standards of street cleanliness that had previously been achieved by 
the Streetscene Team particularly around the levels of detritus. 

 
4. This was evident following the first round of street inspections in April 2014 

when the level of streets falling below a ‘B’ standard (predominantly free of 
detritus) was considerably above our target. 

 
5. As with any ‘year to date’ (YTD) performance indicator, a ‘bad’ month, 

particularly at the beginning of the year can take several months to bring 
back into line. This has been the case with the detritus performance 
indicator.  

 
6. The good news is that since April’s performance of 9%, the monthlyresults 

have achieved target which has slowly reduced the effect of April’s 
performance figure. The YTD performance has improved from 9% to 
October’s YTD figure of 3.62%. This downward trend gives confidence that 
the year-end target of 3% will be achieved.  

 
A Member commented that waste collection in the City Centre could be 
improved as it is unsightly and creates a bad impression when waste 
bags are piled outside of businesses on the High Street and Cornmarket 
Street etc., particularly during tourist season. 

 
7. Members are advised that there are currently at least five waste collection 

companies, including Direct Services Commercial Waste Service, 
operating waste collection services to City Centre businesses. Therefore it 
is a question of being clear about when businesses should present their 
waste for collection and when Collection Service Providers should pick up 
that waste. 

 
8. With that in mind Direct Services Commercial Waste Team have been 

working closely with Environmental Development’s Enforcement Team to 
agree reasonable presenting and operational “windows” for both morning 
and evening bag collections for the City Centre. The proposed times are 
as follows:- 

 
 

• Waste can only be stored on the highway between 6.30am-9.30am and 
5.00pm and 8.30pm. 
 

• Businesses should therefore present their recycling and waste for 
collection between 6.30am and 7.00am and 5pm and 5.30pm. 

 
 

9. Collection Service Providers should complete their morning collections by 
9.30am and their evening collections by 8.30pm. Businesses will be 

40



obliged to remove any uncollected bags from the highway by the end of 
each collection window. It will be their duty to contact their waste collection 
contractor around any failed collection 
 

10. Direct Services Commercial Team are therefore reviewing our own 
commercial collections to completely comply with the new time restrictions 
for central City locations. 
 

11. Direct Services also have procedures in place to ensure that all bags from 
litter bin collections are removed when the litter bin is serviced. 

 
Graffiti is an issue for Members in some parts of the City although none 
of the inspected streets fell below Grade B standard in quarter 1. 
Members would like to know what our policy is towards cleaning up 
graffiti on Council owned property, and on private property. 

 
12. The Grade B standard is defined as ‘some graffiti present, minor in extent, 

that many people passing through a transect (part of a street) would not 
notice.’ 
 

13. Our inspections are a snapshot of the cleanliness of a particular section of 
a street at the time of the inspection. At the time that the streets were 
inspected in quarter 1 the graffiti levels were considered to be at Grade B. 
If further graffiti appeared after the inspection had taken place it would not 
be reflected in that period’s report. 

 
14. Reports of graffiti on Council-owned buildings (including Council-owned 

commercial properties) are addressed by the Streetscene graffiti team. 
Our response times are clearly set out in our published Service Standards 

 
15. Graffiti on private property (including commercial buildings) is not 

automatically removed by the Streetscene Team. As a matter of course we 
will contact the owners of the building to offer them the opportunity to use 
our service for the removal of graffiti and also remind them of their 
responsibility around the visual appearance of their premises.  We price 
competitively to encourage removal but do require them to sign a waiver 
form should they accept. 

 
16. The Streetscene Team have been working with Thames Valley Police to 

produce a Graffiti Removal Information Card which we and they can offer 
to victims of graffiti.  

 
Littering performance is within target but some Members have raised 
this as an issue in the City Centre.  

 
17. The City Centre will always face unique challenges regarding littering due 

to the high volume of visitors and its vibrant nightlife economy. 
 

18. To combat and control littering, Direct Services manage a Streetscene 
service from 6.00am to 8.00pm, 364 days of the year. 

41



 
19. The City Centre is mechanically swept first thing in the morning, litter bins 

are serviced before they are full, and litter pickers operate throughout the 
day through to 8.00pm. 

 
20. All of the above service has resulted in the City Centre regularly achieving 

a Grade A (Free of Litter) result when inspections are carried out and as 
yet this year no street has fallen below Grade B (Predominantly Free of 
Litter). 

 
21. We are also working with our colleagues in Environmental Development 

on Cleaner Greener campaigns and control and enforcement particularly 
around flyer hand-outs and businesses controlling their own waste. 
 

Next steps  
 
22. The committee is asked to note the report and be assured that 

Streetscene Services will continue to work closely with our colleagues in 
Environmental Development and Thames Valley Police around matters of 
littering and graffiti. Direct Services Recycling and Waste Operations 
Team will comply with commercial waste collections timings to remove our 
customers’ bags off of the City Centre highway. 

 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name:     Doug Loveridge 
Job title:  Streetscene Manager 
Service Area / Department:  Streetscene Direct Services 
Tel:  01865 252957                     e-mail:  dloveridge@oxford.gov.uk 
 

  

42



 

 
To:  City Executive Board  
 
Date:  17 December 2014              

 
Report of:   Head of Customer Services 
 
Title of Report:  Discretionary Rate Relief Policy  
 

Summary and Recommendations 
 
Purpose of report: To agree an updated National Non-Domestic Rates 
Discretionary Rate Relief policy. 
          
Key decision: Yes 
 
Executive lead member: Councillor Susan Brown, Executive member for 
Customer Services and Social Inclusion 
 
Policy Framework: Efficient, effective Council 
 
Recommendation: That the City Executive Board approve the updated 
National Non-Domestic Rates Discretionary Rate Relief policy to apply until a 
review is undertaken in 2018. 
  

 
Appendices to report: 
Appendix A- Proposed Discretionary Rate Relief Policy 2015-2018 
Appendix B – Value of Reliefs granted at November 2014 
Appendix C – Risk register 
 
Background 

 
1. . A Billing Authority should have a readily understood policy for deciding 

whether or not to grant Discretionary Rate Relief, and for determining the 
amount of Relief.   

 
2.  There have been a number of changes to Rate Reliefs since 2011 which 

have been implemented.  The proposed revised policy reflects these 
changes which include Retail Relief, Long Term Empty Property Relief, 
New Build Empty Properties and more recently Flooding Relief. 

Purpose of Discretionary Reliefs  

3. The purpose of Rate Relief is to achieve specific policy outcomes such as: 

a) Reducing costs to charities 
b) Supporting the retail sector 
c) Remove costs associated with development 

 

43

Agenda Item 6



d) Reduce the cost/impact of flooding on businesses 

4. The principal consideration when making an award is that any 
Discretionary Rate Relief granted is in the best interests of the residents 
and taxpayers of Oxford City and produces a specific policy objective.  

Purpose of the Policy 
 
5. The purpose of this policy is to determine the level of Discretionary Rate 

Relief to be granted to certain defined ratepayers within the City Council’s 
area- see 1.2. The revised policy is attached at Appendix A.  
 

6. The policy contains details of the Reliefs available, how to apply for them, 
and the process should an application be unsuccessful. 
 

Management of the Process  
 
7. The Policy will be available for the public to view on our website. 

 
8. Once a Ratepayer has been awarded Discretionary Rate Relief, the 

decision can only be revoked by giving at least one year’s notice to the 
Ratepayer with the date of revocation.  
 

9. Our normal practice is to grant Discretionary Rate Relief for one year at a 
time. Ratepayers are advised of this, and prior to the start of a new 
financial year we invite those currently in receipt of Discretionary Rate 
Relief to re-apply for Relief. Supporting evidence or documentation will be 
requested where required. 
 

10. Unsuccessful applicants are able to request a reconsideration of the 
decision. 
 

11. Following a review of the decision to refuse Discretionary Rate Relief it 
can only be challenged by an application for judicial review in the High 
Court. 
 

Financial Implications  
 
12. Since the Business Rates retention scheme came into force from the 1st 

April 2013, Central Government funds 50% of any Discretionary Relief 
granted, with the City Council funding 40%, and the County funding 10%. 

 
13. The current cost to the City Council of granting Discretionary Rate Relief is 

£18,532.30 however this figure will fluctuate throughout the year with 
businesses ceasing to receive relief and new ones being awarded relief.  

 
14. In some cases, such as Flooding Relief and Retail Relief, Central 

Government are funding 100% of the Relief granted. 
 
 

44



Legal Implications 
 
15. The policy outlines the areas of local discretion and Oxford City 

Council’s approach to the various awards. This approach has due 
regard to the impact: 

 

a) On the Council’s wider financial position and how that affects 
Council tax payers; 

 

b) On the organisations and businesses that currently receive or may 
apply for Relief in the future; 

 

c) Of funding made available by Central Government to provide full 
financial support for the awarding of Retail Relief, New Build 
Empty Property Relief and Long Term Empty Property Relief 

 
16. The policy also adopts the principal consideration when making an award 

is that any Relief granted is in the best interests of the residents and 
taxpayers of Oxford City and produces a local benefit. 

 

Risks 

17. If the scheme was changed significantly, there would be insufficient 
budget to meet the cost of granting Discretionary Rate Relief. 

Environmental Impact 
 
18. There is no environmental impact from the granting of discretionary rate 

relief. 
 
Equalities 
 
19. As the policy will consider every application on its merits, no impact 

assessment is necessary 
 
 

Name and contact details of author:- 
 
Name: Tanya Bandekar 
Job title: Service Manager, Revenues and Benefits 
Service Area / Department: Customer Services 
Tel:  01865 252281  e-mail:  tbandekar@oxford.gov.uk 
 

List of background papers:  None 
 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



Customer Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Oxford City Council 
Discretionary 
RateRelief 
Policy 

 
 
 

01/04/2015 to 31/03/2018 

47



Contents 

 

1. Introduction and scope (page 3) 

 

2. The Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme (page 4 and 5) 

 

3. Charitable bodies (charities) (page 6) 

 

4. Registered community amateur sports clubs (page 7) 

 

5. Non-profit making organisations (page 8) 

 

6. Membership and entry fees (page 9) 

 

7. Period of Relief (page 10) 

 

8. Applications (page 11) 

 

9. Applications for other Reliefs (page 12 and 13) 

 

10. Approval (page 14) 

 

11. Policy Review (page 14) 

 

12.  Communications (page 14) 

 

13. Appendix (page 15) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
48



1.  Introduction and scope 

This policy document outlines the areas of local discretion and Oxford City Council’s 

(The Council) approach to the various awards. This approach has regard to the 

impact: 

• On the Council’s wider financial position and how that affects Council tax 

payers 

• On the organisations and businesses that currently receive or may apply for 

Relief in the future 

• On Oxford City residents if Relief is awarded and the regeneration benefits to 

the City 

• of funding made available by Central Government to provide full financial 

support for the awarding of Retail Relief, New Build Empty Property Relief and 

Long Term Empty Property Relief 

 

The principal consideration when making an award is that any Relief granted is in the 

best interests of the residents and taxpayers of Oxford City and produces a local 

benefit. 

 

49



2.  The Discretionary Rate Relief Scheme 

Discretionary Rate Relief is granted in accordance with: 

 

• Section 43 of the Local Government Finance Act (LGFA) 1988; and 

• Section 47- 49 of the Local Government Finance Act (LGFA) 1988 as 

amended by the Localism Act 2011 

 

Clause 69 of the Localism Act amended section 47 of the Local Government 

Finance Act (LGFA) 1988 to allow local billing authorities to fund their own local 

discounts entirely as it sees fit within the limits of the primary legislation and 

European rules on state aid. These powers can be used to encourage new business 

and investment, regeneration projects, as well as to support local shops or 

community services. 

 

The cost of awarding discretionary rate relief is split between Central Government 

(50%), the County Council (10%) and the City Council (40%). However in certain 

circumstances Central Government fund 100% of the cost of awarding relief as 

detailed in Appendix A. 

 

The powers under Section 47 of the LGFA 1988 can also be used to grant specific 

Reliefs that Central Government initiate, namely Retail Relief, New Build Empty 

Property Relief and Long Term Empty Property Relief. 

 

Guidance was given to local authorities in 1990 and 2002 recommending that the 

authority should have readily understood policies for deciding whether or not to 

grant relief, and for determining the amount of relief to certain organisations 

which operate within specified criteria. This criteria covers: 

• Charitable bodies already in receipt of Mandatory Relief at 80% – the 

Council has further discretion to ‘top up’ this Relief to 100% of the Rates 

due.  

• Registered community amateur sports clubs already in receipt of 

Mandatory Relief at 80% – the Council has further discretion to ‘top up’ 

this Relief to 100% of the Rates due. 

• Non-profit making organisations – the Council has discretion to grant 

Discretionary Rate Relief of between 0-100% of the Rates due.  

• Property that is in a qualifying rural settlement and is a qualifying food 

shop, general store, Post Office, sole public house or sole petrol station 

already in receipt of Mandatory Relief of 50% – the Council has discretion 

to ‘top up’ this Relief to 100% of the Rates due. At present there are no 

qualifying rural settlements within the City.  

 

The Council has approved that the level of Discretionary Relief will be 80% of the 

rates bill after allowing transitional relief (the same amount as Mandatory Relief), 

and that in normal circumstances it will not grant any Discretionary Relief to 

50



Charities over and above the 80% Mandatory Relief. 

 

There are 2 specific categories of property for which 100% Discretionary Relief can 

be awarded on a time limited basis. 

• New Build Empty Property 

• Long Term Empty Property 

 

There is also the award of £1,000 Retail Rate Relief in respect of qualifying retail 

premises, currently for a 2 year period 2014/15 and 2015/16. The City Council will 

automatically grant this Relief to qualifying businesses. 

 

In making decisions about applications for Discretionary Rate Relief the Council 

may: 

• Grant Relief up to a maximum of 100% of the Rates due 

• Grant Relief for a sum less than 100% of the Rates due; or 

• Refuse any application for Discretionary Rate Relief 

 

Appendix A details how these reliefs are funded.  It should be noted that Central 

Government will meet 100% of the costs of Transitional Relief, Retail Relief, 

Flooding relief Long Term Empty Property Relief and New Build Empty Property 

Relief.

51



3.  Charitable bodies (charities) 

A Mandatory Rate Relief of 80% is granted to charities in the following 

circumstances: 

 

Where the: 

• Ratepayer of a property is a charity or the trustees of a charity; 

and 

• The property is wholly or mainly used for charitable purposes (including 

charity shops, where the goods sold are mainly donated and the proceeds 

are used for the purpose of the charity) 

 

Registration under the Charities Act 1993 is conclusive evidence of charitable status. 

Bodies which, under the 1993 Act, are exempted from registration or are exempt 

charities are also eligible for Mandatory Relief. Providing the above criteria are met, 

80% Mandatory Rate Relief is granted. 

 

In cases where a charity is in receipt of Mandatory Rate Relief of 80% the 

Council has further discretion to ‘top up’ this Relief to 100% of the Rates due.  

 

Costs are split between Central Government (50%), the County Council (10%) and 

the City Council (40%) as shown at Appendix A. 

52



4.  Registered Community Amateur Sports Clubs (CASC) 

A Mandatory Rate Relief of 80% is granted to registered CASCs. To qualify as a 

CASC, the club must fulfill all of the following criteria. It must be: 

• Open to the whole community 

• Run as an amateur club 

• A non-profit making organisation; and 

• Aiming to provide facilities for, and encourage people to take part in, 

eligible sport 

 

In cases where a CASC is in receipt of Mandatory Rate Relief of 80%, the Council 

has discretion to grant up to 20% additional Rate Relief as a Discretionary top up. 

 

The Council will consider applications for a Discretionary Rate Relief top up from 

CASCs based on their own merits on a case by case basis. The principal 

consideration is that any Relief is granted in the best interests of the residents and 

taxpayers of Oxford City and produces a local benefit as the Council must bear a 

percentage of the cost of any Relief granted. However in determining the 

application the following matters will be taken in to consideration: 

• How the CASC supports and links into the Council’s corporate vision and      

priorities. 

• A CASC should have an open access policy. If a club effectively 

discriminates by only accepting members who have reached a particular 

standard, rather than seeking to promote the attainment of excellence by 

enhancing access and the development of sporting aptitude, then it does 

not fulfill the requirements 

• Although clubs should be open to all without discrimination, single sex 

clubs may be permitted where such restrictions are not discriminatory in 

intent but a genuine result of physical restraints (such as changing room 

facilities) or the requirements of the sport. In such cases, the organisation 

will be required to provide proof of such limiting factors 

• Membership and fee structure 

 

It should be noted that sports clubs and other organisations which run a bar are 

unlikely to be awarded Relief if their main purpose is the sale of food or drink. 

However, if the sale of food or drink by the organisation aids the overall operation 

and development of the organisation in achieving its objectives, this would be 

permissible as long as the principal objectives of the organisation meet the 

eligibility criteria detailed above. If the bar makes a profit, this profit must be 

reinvested to support the organisation in achieving its principal objectives. 

Financial information will be required to evidence any profit and its use. 

53



5.  Non-profit making organisations 

The Council has the power to grant Discretionary Rate Relief of up to 100% to other 

non-profit making organisations. The main objectives of the organisation must be 

related to: 

• Relief of poverty 

• Advancement of religion 

• Advancement of education 

• Social Welfare 

• Science 

• Literature 

• Fine arts 

• Recreation 

 

Or be otherwise beneficial to the community. 

 

An organisation must be able to demonstrate how it: 

• meets local needs and benefits local people; an 

• provides a valuable service to the community; and 

• is open to all sections of the community 

• operates in such a way that it does not discriminate against any section of the 

community;  

  

 and: 

• is not conducted or established for the primary purpose of accruing profit. 

 

The Council will consider applications for a Discretionary Rate Relief from 

Non-profit making organisations based on their own merits, on a case by case basis. 

However the principal consideration is that the Relief is granted in the best interests 

of the residents and taxpayers of Oxford City and produces a local benefit as the 

Council must contribute to the cost of each award as shown at Appendix A. 

54



 

6.  Membership and entry fees 

If the organisation applying for Discretionary Rate Relief requires membership or an 

entry fee, the Council will consider whether: 

• Membership is open to everyone, regardless of race, ethnic origin, sex, 

marital or parental status, sexual orientation, creed, disability, age, religious 

affiliation or political belief 

• The subscription or fee is set at a level which is not prohibitively high and 

considered to be affordable by most sections of the community 

• Fee reductions are offered for certain groups such as, for example, under 

• 18’s or over 60’s 

• Membership is encouraged from groups who face social barriers, such as, for 

example, young people not in employment, education or training; people 

above working age; or people with disabilities 

• Facilities are made available to people other than members 

  

55



 

7.  Period of Relief 

 

Discretionary Rate Relief 

 

Discretionary Rate Relief will usually be granted for a period of one financial year. 

Successful applicants will be sent a letter confirming that their application for 

Discretionary Rate Relief has been granted. This letter will also explain that Relief has 

been granted for twelve months only. 

 

The granting of Relief will be reviewed annually and those in receipt of Discretionary 

Rate Relief will be asked to supply or confirm relevant information for the purpose of 

the review. 

 

If a Ratepayer in receipt of Discretionary Rate Relief ceases to meet the eligibility 

criteria outlined in this policy, they will cease to receive Discretionary Rate Relief. The 

Council will give such Ratepayers twelve months written notice prior to the 

withdrawal of Discretionary Rate Relief. The ratepayer may request reconsideration 

against this decision. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

56



 

8. Applications 

 

Discretionary Rate Relief 

Applications for Discretionary Rate Relief must be supported by, and include: 

• The main purposes and objectives of the Business, as set out in, for example, 

a written constitution, a memorandum and/or articles of association, or a  set 

of membership rules 

• A full set of audited accounts relating to the two years preceding the date of 

application. Where audited accounts are not available, projected figures 

should be provided certified as being a ‘true and fair view’ by the company 

secretary or company accountants may be used  

• Details of how the Business meets the criteria outlined in the guidelines 

below: 

 

As a guide, to be eligible for Discretionary Rate Relief, a charity/organisation must not 

normally have enough financial resources available in unrestricted funds to continue 

to operate for more than 12 months, nor should it have sufficient financial resources 

in unrestricted reserves to continue to operate for more than 12 months, unless a 

business plan exists detailing how these additional reserves are to be used to benefit 

the local community. 

 

In such cases, the applicant must be able to prove that it offers a service which the 

city’s residents depend on, and which they would be unlikely to find elsewhere in the 

city. 

 

Application forms will be available on our website at: 

http://www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decB/Discounts_and_Exemptions_occw.htm 

 

All completed application forms should be returned to the Business Rates Team at 

Oxford City Council. 

 

By email: 

brates@oxford.gov.uk 

 

By post: 

Oxford City Council 

Business Rates 

109-113 St Aldates 

Oxford 

OX1 1DS 

 

 

 

57



 

9. Applications for other Reliefs 

 

Hardship Relief 

The Council has the power to reduce or remit the Business Rates charged in certain 

circumstances where the Ratepayer is enduring temporary financial difficulties. This is 

known as Hardship Relief.The Council may grant Hardship Relief if it is satisfied that: 

• The Ratepayer would sustain financial hardship if the Council did not doso; and 

• It is reasonable for the Council to grant Relief, with regard to the interests of its 

residents and Council Tax payers 

 

Hardship Relief is a temporary measure which should not be used to artificially sustain 

a failing business. Hardship Relief will be awarded where the ratepayer is facing 

temporary financial difficulties and where the community would be significantly 

disadvantaged if the business were to close.  

 

Successful applicants will be sent a letter confirming that their application for 

Hardship Relief has been granted including the period and amount of Relief. 

 

Application forms for Hardship Relief must be accompanied by full set of audited 

accounts relating to the two years preceding the date of application. Where audited 

accounts are not available for the current financial year, projected figures 

certified as being a ‘true and fair view’ by the company secretary or company 

accountants may be used. It is recommended that applicants submit audited accounts 

dating back further than two years, if such information is available. 

 

Section 44a Relief (partly occupied properties) 

The Council has discretion under section 44a of the Local Government Finance Act to 

award Rate Relief where part of a property is unoccupied for a temporary period. The 

definition of ‘temporary period’ is not prescribed with the law and therefore Oxford 

City Council has the discretion to decide the period of Relief should be awarded. The 

amount of Rate Relief that is awarded is determined by statute and is calculated by 

reference to the Rateable Value attributed to the unoccupied area by the Valuation 

Office Agency, part of Her Majesty’s Revenue and Customs (HMRC). 

 

Applications will only be considered in respect of unoccupied parts of a property that 

can be clearly defined and are reasonably segregated from the occupied part of the 

property. 

 

No award shall be made where it appears to the Council that the reason that part of 

the property is unoccupied is wholly or mainly for the purposes of applying for Rate 

Relief. 

 

Rate Relief under this section will not be awarded in respect of partly occupied 

property where the partial occupation of the property may arise due to the ordinary 

58



 

day to day nature of the business (for example the operation of a warehouse). 

The period of Relief will not exceed either 3 or 6 months depending on the type of 

property the claim has been made for, in line with the current legislation for part-

occupied properties. 

 

A Ratepayer making an application under section 44a should do so in writing and 

should include: 

• A plan of the property showing the dimensions of the occupied and 

unoccupied area of suitable quality to enable the Valuation Office Agency to 

apportion the Rateable value of the property between the occupied and 

unoccupied areas. Applications will not be considered until such time as the 

plan is provided 

• The period to which the application relates 

• Contact details in order to inspect the site where necessary 

 

Discretionary Rate Relief Using Powers Conferred by the Localism Act 2011 

The Council is now able to grant Relief within the limits of the primary legislation and 

European rules on state aid. Central Government has initiated three Reliefs on a time 

limited basis to support businesses. These can be awarded under the powers of the 

Localism Act and the City Council will automatically grant relief to qualifying 

businesses. The granting of these Reliefs is in relation to specific categories of 

property and 100% funding for these Reliefs (Retail Relief, New Build Empty Property 

Relief and Long Term Empty Property Relief) is provided by Central Government. 

 

Using the general exception from the state aid rule where the aid is below the “de 

minimis” level, the Council will limit awards to a maximum of €200,000 to any one 

business or corporate group over any three year period. 

 

The Council will consider applications for a local discount under the Localism Act 

based on their own merits, on a case by case basis. However the principal 

consideration is that the Relief is in the best interests of the residents and taxpayers 

of Oxford City and produces a local benefit as the Council must contribute to the cost 

of each award. Costs are split between Central Government (50%), the County Council 

(10%) and the City Council (40%) as shown at Appendix A. 

 

Applications could be considered, for example, where the property is used for 

purposes which are of benefit to the wider local community but do not fall in any 

other categories for relief, and it would be in the interests of the Council Tax payer to 

make an award, as the Council has to meet a proportion of the costs as shown at 

Appendix A. It could also be used to support regeneration projects within the City and 

bring empty properties back into use. 

Information on reliefs available can be found on our website at: 

www.oxford.gov.uk/PageRender/decB/Discounts_and_Exemptions_occw.htm#6 

 
59



 

10. Approval 

The initial assessment to award or refuse Relief will be made by a Revenues Officer 

and agreed and signed off by the Service Manager or Head of Service. 

 

Any officer involved in the decision-making process for Discretionary Rate Relief or 

Hardship Relief must declare if they have an interest in or an association with any 

Ratepayer applying for Discretionary Rate Relief. 

 

Applicants will be notified in writing of any decision within 28 days. A revised Business 

Rates bill will be sent where appropriate.  

 

Unsuccessful applicants will be notified that they can request a reconsideration of the 

decision. 

 

These reconsiderations will be reviewed by the Revenues Manager and signed off by 

the Service Manager or Head of Service. 

 

It should be noted that Retail Relief, New Build Empty Property Relief and Long Term 

Empty Property Relief will not be subject to an application and approval process as 

there is an automatic entitlement. The Revenues Inspector will visit empty properties 

on a regular basis to review occupation. However the Ratepayer will be required to 

declare receipt of any state aid to ensure it complies with ‘de minimis’ levels. 

 

11. Policy Review 

The Council reserves the right to review and revise the policy at any time as a result of 

information gained as a result of operating the policy, or following any changes to 

legislation. 

 

12.  Communications 

The Council will publicise Discretionary Rate Relief in the following ways: 

• On our website 

• In leaflets and explanatory notes that accompany the annual rates bill 

• Ratepayer consultation meetings 

 

 

  

60



 

13. Appendix A 

 

Funding of Reliefs 

With the introduction of the Business Rates Retention Scheme from 1st April 

2013, local authorities now share in the gains and losses associated with changes in 

Business Rates income. The Government hopes that localising Business Rates in this 

way will incentivise Local Authorities to adopt strategies to promote businesses and 

generate additional Business Rates income. The introduction of Business Rates 

Retention has a major impact on the funding arrangements for all Reliefs available 

which are now financed as follows: 

 

 50% by Central Government 

 40% by Oxford City Council 

 10% by Oxfordshire County Council 

 

This excludes Transitional, Retail, Flooding Relief, Long Term Empty Property Relief 

and New Build Empty Property Relief which are financed at 100% by Central 

Government. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B 
 

Value of Business Relief Awards 2014/15 & Cost to the City 
Council 

   

      

Relief Type No of 
Cases 

Value of Award 
2014/15 

Awarded in 
year for 
previous 

years 

Total Cost to OCC 
40% 

Discretionary Rate Relief 11 £46,330.75 £0.00 £46,330.75 £18,532.30 

Mandatory Rate Relief 527 £17,964,050.11 £0.00 £17,964,050.11 £7,185,620.04 

Part Occupation Section 44A 
Relief 

2 £148,561.52 £37,590.81 £186,152.33 £74,460.93 

Rural Rate Relief 0 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 

Hardship Relief 0 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0 

Local Discounts (Retail Relief, 
Flood Relief, Long Term 

Empty, New Build Empty) 

886 £851,487.21 £8,953.80 £860,441.01 £0 

 

63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Title Risk description Opp/ threat Cause Consequence I P I P I P Control description Due date Status Progress 
% Action Owner

Business Rate 
Reliefs

Any change to the existing 
Discretionary Rate Relief 
Policy could result in 
insufficient budget to meet the 
cost of granting relief. 
However as the costs are 
shared with Central 
Government and the County 
Council, it could also be an 
opportunity to fund reliefs that 
help the ratepayer to support 

Opportunity 
and threat

An increase in demand for relief If the scheme was 
changed 
significantly, there 
could be insufficient 
budget to meet the 
cost of granting 
Discretionary Rate 
Relief.

13/11/14 Helen Bishop 3 2 1 2 1 2 At the moment this is 
low risk but any change 
to Discretionary Reliefs 
would mean additional 
finance would need to 
be found. The updated 
policy does not 
propose any changes 
to the existing policy 
therefore there should 
not be an increase in 

Monthly monitoring of 
total of relief granted

31/12/14 Live 50% Tanya Bandekar

Appendix C - Risk register

Date Raised Owner Gross Current Residual Comments Controls

65



T
his page is intentionally left blank



27 November 2014 

Scrutiny Work Programme 2014 - 2015 
 
This programme represents the work of Scrutiny, including panel work and Committee items.  The work programme is divided under the 
following headings: 
 

1. Standing Panels  
2. Review Panels and Ad hoc Panels in progress 
3. Potential Review Panels (to be established if and when resources allow) 
4. Items for Scrutiny Committee meetings  
5. Draft Scrutiny Committee agenda schedule 
6. Items called in and Councillor calls for action 
7. Items referred to Scrutiny by Council 

 
 

1. Standing Panels 
 

Topic Area(s) for focus 
Nominated councillors (no substitutions 
allowed 

Finance Panel – All finance 
issues considered within the 
Scrutiny Function.  

See appendix 1 Councillors Simmons (Chair), Darke, Fooks and 
Fry  

Housing – All strategic and 
landlord issues considered 
within the Scrutiny Function.  

See appendix 2 Councillors Hollick (Chair), Sanders and Wade 
Co-opted Member – Linda Hill  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67

A
genda Item

 7



2. Review panels and ad hoc panels in progress 
 

Topic Scope Progress Next steps 
Nominated 
councillors 

Oxford 
Standard 
Panel 

To give advice to the City 
Executive Board on the content 
and definition of the Oxford 
Standard for Council properties.  

The Scrutiny Committee on 6 
October endorsed the report and 
provided comment. 

Final report due to go 
to the City Executive 
Board in December. 

Joint Chairing;  
Housing Panel 
and Tenant 
Scrutiny Group 

Thames Water 
investment to 
improve 
flooding and 
sewerage  

To continue engagement with 
Thames Water Utilities (TWU) 
at a senior level to ensure 
delivery of the agreements 
reached.    

Catchment study publically launched 
and a press statement issued in 
advance.Contact made with TWU to 
establish governance structure. 

Panel briefing on study 
to be arranged.  
Governance structure 
meeting dates to be 
set. 

Councillors 
Darke (Chair) 
Pressel, 
Thomas and 
Goddard 

Tacking 
Inequality 

To review how the City Council 
contributes to combatting 
harmful inequality in Oxford, and 
whether there is more that could 
reasonably be done.   

The panel met on 24 November to 
begin gathering evidence.  The panel 
heard from a local expert on food 
poverty and a range of city council 
officers.  A call for evidence has 
been issued to ‘interested parties’, 
along with a press release. 

Panel meetings 
scheduled for 16 
December and 9 
February.   
 

Councillor 
Coulter 
(Chair), Gant 
and Thomas  

Budget Review Annual review of draft budget 
and medium term financial plan 

Scope agreed and all meetings 
scheduled.   

Initial review meeting 
on 11 December 2014 

Finance Panel 
Members  

Recycling 
rates 

To review of recycling and 
waste data rates, and consider 
community incentives and other 
recycling initiatives. 

Continuation of previous panel which 
reported in July 2014. Meeting held 
on 8 October to consider bid for 
incentive funding. 

Panel to visit depot 
and consider waste 
and recycling on 16 
February 2015 

Councillor Fry 
(Chair), 
Simmons and 
Hayes 

Educational 
Attainment 

To consider evidence from KRM 
on the City Council’s 
Educational Attainment 
programme. 

Panel meeting scheduled for 4 
December.  

Panel to report to 19 
January Scrutiny 
Committee 

Councillors 
Altaf-Khan, 
Hayes, 
Thomas 

 

68



3. Potential Review Panels – to be established when resources allow  
 

Topic Area(s) for focus Nominated councillors 

Support for the 
local economy 

Panel to meet on 3 December to consider terms of reference.  Suggestions include: 
- How City Council policies on planning and licensing affect the local economy, 

including aspects such as the restrictions on changes of use. 
- How more can be done to ensure that local businesses are aware of all kinds of 

support available, including City Deal Funding. 
- What a small cross-section of businesses, from large to small, and from across the 

City, feel are the biggest barriers to success locally (and just as important, how 
many of these barriers are amenable to action by the City Council). 

Councillors Fry (Chair), 
Benjamin, Darke, Gotch 

Cycling  Scope to be determined.  Panel to consider area(s) of focus which could include: 

• Review cycling funding including City and County Council contributions. 

• Explore progress against sought outcomes and value for money achieved. 

Councillors Wolff, Upton, 
Pressel and Hayes  

 
 
Indicative scrutiny review timeline 2014-2015 (does not include ad hoc review panels) 
 

Review Sept  Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar April May June July 

Budget Scrutiny            

Inequalities            

Cycling            

Support for the local economy            

 
 

 Scoping 

 Evidence gathering and review 

 Reporting 

 
 

69



4. Items for Committee meetings (in no particular order) 
 

Topic Area(s) for focus 
Lead and other 
Councillors 

Discretionary Housing 
Payments 

Quarterly updates on spending profiles within a framework agreed by the 
Committee.   

Councillor Coulter 

Performance monitoring 
 

Quarterly report on a set of Corporate and service measures chosen by 
the Committee. 

Councillors Altaf-Khan, 
Coulter, Darke & Simmons 

Educational attainment 
investment 

To consider the academic progress and key stage results at schools 
operating the KRM model compared to those not.  

Councillors Altaf-Khan, & 
Hayes & Thomas 

Fusion Lifestyle contract 
performance 

Regular yearly item agreed again by the Committee to consider 
performance against contact conditions. 

Councillor Simmons 

Research on the effects of 
welfare reform 

To consider research into the impact of welfare reforms in the City. Councillor Coulter 

Clean streets To receive an update on the City Council’s approach to keeping Oxford 
streets clean from graffiti, detritus, littering and waste. 

 

Living Wage To review how the living wage is enforced through procurement contracts  

New controls over anti-
social behaviour  

To receive an update on the City Council’s changing approach to anti-
social behaviour. 

 

Low Carbon Oxford To receive an update on the progress of this scheme and plans to 
progress the low carbon agenda in Oxford. 

 

Community and 
Neighbourhood services 

To review aims, activities and outcomes; grant distribution; community 
centres and associations; volunteering; Neighbourhood plans; how better 
on-going engagement can be established with different communities.  

 

Activities for older 
residents and preventing 
isolation 

To receive an update on services and activities for over 50s, with a focus 
on preventing isolation. 

 

Individual voter registration To receive an update on changes to electoral registration and to monitor 
how the City Council is maximising registration. 

 

Taxi Licencing To review rules and processes; to understand driver issues.   

Forward Plan items To consider issues to be decided by the City Executive Board.  

70



5. Draft Scrutiny Committee Agenda Schedule 
 

Date (all 6pm, St. 
Aldate’s Room 
unless stated) 

Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

8 December 2014 1. Corporate Peer Challenge Action Plan 
 

2. Clean Streets 
 

3. Discretionary rates relief for businesses policy (pre-scrutiny) 

Cllr Price; Peter Sloman 
 
Douglas Loveridge 
 
Tanya Bandekar 
 

23 December 2014 
(10.00am start) 

Provisional meeting to allow for call in of the Sale of Temple Cowley 
Pool decision to be taken by the City Executive Board on 10 
December 2014 

Cllr Rowley; Jane Winfield 
 

19 January 2015 1. Growth Board Work Programme 
 

2. Educational Attainment 
 

3. Research into the local impact of Welfare Reform 
 

4. New Council controls over anti-social behaviour 
 

5. Purchase of St. Aldate’s Chambers (pre-scrutiny) 
 

Cllr Price; Paul Staines 
 
Pat Kennedy; Val Johnson 
 
Paul Wilding 
 
Richard Adams 
 
Jane Winfield 

3 February 2015 1. Cycle City 
 

2. Community and Neighbourhood services 
 

3. Activities for older residents and preventing isolation 
 

4. Performance monitoring – quarter 3 
 

Jo Colwell 
 
Ian Brooke 
 
Luke Nipen, Vicki Galvin 
 
N/A 

71



2 March 2015 1. Living Wage 
 

2. Consultation and Engagement 
 

Simon Howick 
 
Sadie Paige 
 

23 March 2015  1. Low Carbon Oxford 
 

2. Inequalities Panel report 
 

John Copley 
 
Cllr Coulter 

5 May 2015  1. Recycling rates 
 

Geoff Corps 

 
 

6. Items called in and Councillor calls for action 
 
None 
 

7. Items referred to Scrutiny by Council 
 
None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

72



Appendix 1 - Finance Panel work programme 2014-15 
 

Items for Finance Panel meetings 
 

Suggested Topic Suggested approach / area(s) for focus 

Budget Scrutiny Review of the Council’s medium term financial strategy. 

Budget monitoring Regular monitoring of projected budget outturns through the year. 

Treasury Management Scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and regular monitoring of Treasury performance. 

Capital process To receive an update on the implementation of the Capital Gateway process. 

Maximising European 
funding 

To consider how the City Council can maximise funding opportunities; invite local MEPs to contribute 
to the discussion. 

Municipal bonds To receive an update on the establishment of a municipal bonds agency.  

Local financing To consider whether there is a case for the City Council to generating capital financing locally through 
bonds or crowd-funding. 

Ethical investment To monitor the City Council’s approach to implementing an ethical investment policy. 

Council tax exemptions To receive an update on the financial implications of different types of exemptions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



Draft Finance Panel agenda schedule 
 

Date and room (all 5.30pm, 
St. Aldate’s Room) 

Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

21 January 2015 1. Capital programme process review update 
 

2. Banking Services Provider  
 

3. Budget Scrutiny – recommendation areas 
agreed 

David Edwards, Stephen Clarke, Nigel 
Kennedy 
Nigel Kennedy 
 
Cllr Simmons 

5 February 2015 
 

1. European funding 
 

2. Budget monitoring – quarter 3 
 

3. Treasury Management Strategy 15/16 
 

4. Budget Scrutiny – report finalised 

Anneliese Dodds MEP; others TBC 
 
Nigel Kennedy 
 
Anna Winship 
 
Cllr Simmons 

25 March 2015 1. Local Financing TBC 

 
Meetings closed to the public: 
 

Date and room (all 5.30pm) Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

11 December 2014, Plowman 
Room 

1. Review of draft budget Nigel Kennedy 

12 January 2015, Plowman 
Room 

1. Budget Scrutiny – Community Services Cllr Turner; Tim Sadler 

13 January 2015, Plowman 
Room 

1. Budget Scrutiny – Organisational Development 
and Corporate Services 

Cllr Turner; Peter Sloman, Jackie Yates 

14 January 2015, Plowman 
Room 

1. Budget Scrutiny – City Regeneration and 
Housing  

Cllrs Turner &Seamons; David Edwards, 
Stephen Clarke 

3 February 2015, St. Aldate’s 
Room 

1. Review of published budget report Nigel Kennedy 

74



Appendix 2 - Housing Panel work programme 2014-15 
 

Items for Housing Panel meetings 
 

Suggested Topic Suggested approach / area(s) for focus 

Performance monitoring  Regular monitoring of performance measures for Estates Regeneration, Housing Supply and 
Welfare Reform and Housing Crisis. 

Housing Strategy Review headline priorities and sought outcomes in Housing Strategy at draft stage, and the action 
plan post-consultation. 

Increasing the provision of 
affordable housing 

Monitoring of performance measures; scrutiny of the Housing Business Plan and the Housing 
Strategy; consider alternative options e.g. pre-fabs and ‘pods’; possible review topic. 

Homelessness Monitoring of performance measures; scrutiny of the Housing Business Plan and Housing Strategy; 
pre-scrutiny of homelessness grant allocations; possible review topics. 

Rent arrears Monitoring of performance measures; bi-annual update reports. 

STAR survey results Monitoring of results. 

Tackling under-occupancy  Report on efforts to tackle under-occupancy; consider in rent arrears reports. 

Oxford Standard To receive a progress update on the delivery of the Oxford Standard through the Asset 
Management Strategy and Action Plan, including an update on work to improve thermal efficiency in 
the Council’s housing stock. 

Private sector licencing  Update report on the scheme; consider views of landlords and PRS tenants. 

Unlawful dwellings A report on the City Council’s approach to tackling illegal dwellings e.g. beds in sheds, given that 
funding ends in April 2015. 

Repairs exemptions policy To scrutinise proposed changes to the current policy. 

De-designation of 40+ 
accommodation 

Update report on the final phase of de-designating 40+ accommodation (expected in April 15). 

Sheltered Housing To contribute to and monitor the customer profiling survey of residents in sheltered accommodation 
and how this data should inform future provision. 

Fuel Poverty To receive an update on the City Council’s approach to the issue of Fuel Poverty. 
Commission/review research; consider during other items; possible review topic. 

Supporting people  Verbal updates on the joint commissioning of housing support services. 

 

75



Draft Housing Panel Agenda Schedules 
 

Date, room and time Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

10 December, Plowman 
Room, 5pm 

1. Asset Management Strategy 
 

2. Sheltered Housing 

Stephen Clarke 
 
Gary Parsons; Alison Dalton 
 

22 January 2015, 
Plowman Room, 5pm 

1. Star Survey Results 
 

2. Fuel Poverty 
 

3. Aids and Adaptions Policy (pre-scrutiny) 
 

4. Exemption policy (pre-scrutiny) 
 

Gary Parsons 
 
Deborah Haynes 
 
Stephen Clarke 
 
Gary Parsons; Nicola Griffiths 
 

4 February 2015, St 
Aldate’s Room, 5.30pm 

1. Unlawful dwellings 
 

2. Tackling under-occupancy 
 

Ian Wright 
 
Bill Graves 

24 March 2015, Judges 
Room, 5pm 

Items TBC  

 
 

Meetings closed to the public: 
 

Date, room and time Agenda Item Lead Member; Officer(s) 

15 January 2015, 
Plowman Room, 
5.30pm  

1. Budget Scrutiny - Housing   
 

Cllrs Turner &Seamons; Stephen 
Clarke 
 

 

76



 

 

 

 

 

FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD 

DECEMBER - MAY 2015 
 

 

The Forward Plan gives information about all decisions the City Executive Board (CEB) is 
expected to take and significant decisions to be made by Council or other Council 
committees over the forthcoming four-month period. It also contains information beyond this 
in draft form about decisions of significance to be taken in the forthcoming year. 

 
What is a Key decision? 
A key decision is an executive decision which is likely:-  

• To result in the council incurring expenditure of more than £500,000 or  

• To be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area 
comprising of two or more wards.  

A key decision, except in special or urgent circumstances, cannot be taken unless it has 
appeared in the Forward Plan for 28 days before the decision is made. 

 
Private meetings 

Some or all, of the information supporting decisions in the Forward Plan may be taken at a 
meeting not open in part, or in whole to the press or public. Items that contain confidential 
information that will be excluded from the public are marked in this plan and the reason for 
doing so given. 

If you object to an item being taken in private, or if you wish to make representations about 
any matter listed in the Forward Plan, then please contact Democratic Services at least 7 
working days before the decision is due to be made. This can be done by emailing 
cityexecutiveboard@oxford.gov.uk or writing to: 

Democratic Services 
St Aldate’s Chambers 
St Aldate’s Street 
Oxford OX1 1DS 
 
Inspection of documents 

Reports to be submitted to the decision-maker and background papers to those reports are 
available for inspection at the Council offices and will appear on our website 
http://www.oxford.gov.uk 5 working days prior to the date on which the decision is due to be 
made. 

 
The Council’s decision-making process 

The agenda papers for CEB meetings are available five working days before the meeting on 
the council website. 

77



 
 

Further information about the Council’s decision making process can be found in the 
Council’s Constitution, which can be inspected at the Council’s offices or online at 
http://www.oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
City Executive Board Membership and Responsibilities 
 

City Executive Board Member  
 

Portfolio 

Bob Price, Council Leader Corporate Strategy, Economic Development 
and Planning 
 

Ed Turner, Deputy Leader Finance, Asset Management and Public 
Health 
 

Susan Brown Customer Services and Social Inclusion 
 

Mark Lygo Sports, Events and Parks 
 

Pat Kennedy Educational Attainment and Youth Ambition 
 

Mike Rowley Leisure Contract and Community Partnership 
Grants 
 

Dee Sinclair Crime and Community Response 
 

Scott Seamons Housing and Estate Regeneration 
 

Christine Simm Culture and Communities 
 

John Tanner Cleaner, Greener Oxford, Climate Change 
and Transport 
 

 

78



 
 

  
 

OFFICER EXECUTIVE DECISIONS FOR OCTOBER 2014 

 

ITEM 1: AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR A NEW TELEPHONY SOLUTION. 
ID: I009808 

The Council currently has  
• Numerous contracts with BT for line rental and call costs  
• A contract with Vodafone for mobiles. This contract ends later this month and can be 
extended on a monthly basis.  
• Various line contracts with Virgin  
• A Mitel for our switchboard system which has a two year remaining life span  
 
The Council’s annual telephony spend is approx.is £270k a year and many staff have 
access to more than one voice device solution.  
 
Organisations are moving to providing staff with a single voice device solution depending on 
their role and work requirement.  
This supply market is now fairly mature and a number of Councils are already implementing 
this solution and achieving financial savings.  
 
The likely new contract value over 5 years will exceed the £500k threshold so I will require 
CEB approval to award this contract. 

The City Executive Board resolved on 10 September 2014 to give project approval and 
delegated authority to the Director of Organisational Development and Corporate Services to 
award a new telephony contract.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Part exempt Commercially Sensitive Information 

Decision Taker Executive Director of Organisational 
Development and Corporate Services 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public HealthC 

Report Owner: Head of Business Improvement and Technology 

Report Contact: Jane Lubbock Tel: 01865 252708 
jlubbock@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 2: COMMISSIONING ADVICE SERVICES 2015-18 
ID: I009633 

The report sets out the process for re-commissioning advice services linking the required 
outcomes to those in the Financial Inclusion Strategy.  

On 10 September 2014, the City Executive Board resolved that the identification of the 
priority area to be included in the service specification together with the associated 
outcomes and measures are delegated to the portfolio holder for Customer Services and 
Social Inclusion and the Head of Customer Services to agree with the commissioned advice 
agencies prior to 1 October 2014. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker Board member for Customer Services and Social 

79



 
 

Inclusion 
Head of Customer Services 

Executive Lead Member: Customer Services and Social Inclusion 

Report Owner: Head of Customer ServicesC 

Report Contact: Paul Wilding Tel: 01865 252461 
pwilding@oxford.gov.uk 
Helen Bishop Tel: 01865 252233 
hbishop@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 3: DEVELOPMENT OF THE NEW ROSE HILL COMMUNITY CENTRE 
ID: I010054 

The proposed development of the new Rose Hill Community Centre will commence upon the 
appointment of a building contractor. Tenders were submitted on the 8th September with a 
view to awarding the contact week commencing 22nd September 2012.  
The value of this contract will be in excess of £500,000. 

The Executive Director of Community Services will award a contract to develop the new 
Rose Hill Community Centre. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Part exempt Commercially Sensitive information 

Decision Taker Executive Director of Community Services 

Executive Lead Member: Culture and Communities,  
Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Leisure, Parks and Communities, 
Regeneration 
Major Projects Service Manager 

Report Contact: Mark Spriggs Tel: 01865 252822 
mspriggs@oxford.gov.uk 
Jane Winfield Tel: 01865 252551 
jwinfield@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 4: REDEVELOPMENT OF FRIDESWIDE SQUARE PROJECT 
ID: I008876 

Redevelopment of Frideswide Square in partnership with Oxfordshire County Council. 
 
On 3 July CEB agreed to Delegate to the Executive Director of Regeneration and Housing 
responsibility to complete the legal agreement requested by the County Council 
 
On 15 October CEB agreed - To include within the Legal Agreement with the County Council 
the arrangements for the maintenance and management of Frideswide Square and to 
delegate to the Executive Director Community Services the responsibility for agreeing such 
maintenance and management arrangements.  
  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker Executive Director of City Regeneration and 
Housing 
Executive Director of Community Services 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

80



 
 

Report Owner: Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Michael Crofton-Briggs Tel: 01865 252360 
mcrofton-briggs@oxford.gov.uk 
David Edwards Tel: 01865 252394 
dedwards@oxford.gov.uk 
Tim Sadler Tel: 01865 252101 
tsadler@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

COUNCIL 1 DECEMBER 2014 

 

ITEM 5: ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN REFRESH 2014-15 
ID: I009892 

Short refresh of the current Asset Management Plan 2011-14 to extend the document 
through to end of 2015 ahead of a new Plan for 2016-20  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public 
HealthCC 

Report Owner: Regeneration and Major Projects Service 
Manager 

Report Contact: Mike Scott Tel: 01865 252138 
mwscott@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 6: MEMBERS ALLOWANCES SCHEME 
ID: I010056 

To present the advice of the independent remuneration panel to Council and for Council to 
agree a new allowance scheme for 2015 – 2018.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker Council 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of Law and Governance 

Report Contact: Emma Griffiths Tel: 01865 252208 
egriffiths@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 7: POLLING PLACES REVIEW 
ID: I010058 

To report the findings of a statutory review of polling places  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker Council 

Executive Lead Member:  

Report Owner: Head of Law and Governance 

Report Contact: Martin John Tel: 01865 252518 
mjohn@oxford.gov.uk 

81



 
 

 
 

 

ITEM 8: WESTGATE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
ID: I010037 

This is asking the Council to agree to make a financial contribution to the Westgate Alliance 
towards the public realm works associated with the Westgate development that fall outside 
the red line of the planning application site.   
 
At the CEB meeting on 19 November, the Executive Director of Regeneration and Housing 
has been delegated the responsibility to complete the legal agreement. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 
Executive Director of City Regeneration and 
Housing 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
PlanningCCCC 

Report Owner: Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Michael Crofton-Briggs Tel: 01865 252360 
mcrofton-briggs@oxford.gov.uk 
David Edwards Tel: 01865 252394 
dedwards@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

CEB 10 DECEMBER 2014 

 

ITEM 9: SALE OF TEMPLE COWLEY SWIMMING POOL 
ID: I010164 

To review the bids interested in purchasing the Temple Cowley Pool site. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Part exempt Commercially sensitive information 

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Leisure Contract and Community Partnership 
Grants 

Report Owner: Regeneration and Major Projects Service 
Manager 

Report Contact: Jane Winfield Tel: 01865 252551 
jwinfield@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

82



 
 

CEB 17 DECEMBER 2014 

 

ITEM 10: ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY- COUNCIL HOUSING STOCK 
ID: I010484 

To propose the adoption of a strategy that will determine decisions for the Council’s housing 
stock  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate RegenerationCCCC 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Martin Shaw  mshaw2@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

 

ITEM 11: BUDGET 2015/16 
ID: I010205 

Draft Budget and medium term Financial Plan  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public 
HealthCCCC 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 

Report Contact: Nigel Kennedy Tel: 01865 252708 
nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 12: DISCRETIONARY RATES RELIEF FOR BUSINESSES POLICY 
ID: I010158 

Review of the Council’s Discretionary Rates Relief for Businesses policy 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Customer Services 

Report Contact: Tanya Bandekar Tel: 01865 252281 
tbandekar@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 13: CORPORATE BIODIVERSITY STRATEGY 
ID: I010031 

This Strategy will set out how the Council aims to fulfil its duties under the Natural 
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

83



 
 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Cleaner, Greener Oxford, Climate Change and 
Transport 

Report Owner: Head of Environmental Development 

Report Contact: Mai Jarvis Tel: 01865 252403 
mjarvis@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

 

ITEM 14: DATA PROTECTION POLICY REFRESH 
ID: I006767 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open   

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public HealthCC 

Report Owner: Head of Business Improvement and Technology 
 
Executive Director of Organisational Development 
and Corporate Services 

Report Contact Jane Lubbock Tel: 01865 252708 
jlubbock@oxford.gov.ukCCLucy Neville Tel: 01864 
2086 lneville@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 15: INTEGRATED PERFORMANCE REPORTS 2014/15 
ID: I009810 

To provide an update of the forecast financial out-turn, the performance of services and the 
risks faced by the authority. 
Quarter 1- based on information as at 30th June 2014.  
Quarter 2- based on information as at 31st October 2014 
Quarter 3- based on information as at 31st January 2015 

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
CouncilC 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public HealthC 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 
Head of Business Improvement and Technology 

Report Contact: Nigel Kennedy Tel: 01865 252708 
nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 16: LEISURE & WELLBEING STRATEGY 
ID: I009355 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising 
two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open   

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Leisure Contract and Community Partnership 

84



 
 

Grants 

Report Owner: Head of Leisure, Parks and Communities 

Report Contact Ian Brooke Tel: 01865 252705 
ibrooke@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 17: RISK MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 
ID: I009990 

To approve the Council’s updated Risk Management Strategy and Operating framework. 

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker Audit and Governance Committee 
City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 

Report Contact: Joanna Hargreaves Tel: 01865 252265 
jhargreaves@oxford.gov.uk 
Shaun Vinnicombe Tel: 01865 252048 
svinnicombe@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 18: PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT FRAMEWORK 
ID: I003058 

This report will set out the Council’s approach to delivering and embedding continuous 
improvement across the Council. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Business Improvement and Technology 

Report Contact: Jane Lubbock Tel: 01865 252708 
jlubbock@oxford.gov.ukCCJan Heath Tel: 01865 
252324 jheath@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

DECEMBER 2014 

 

ITEM 19: CORPORATE PLAN 2015-19 
ID: I010162 

Draft Corporate Plan 2015-19 for consultation to be agreed by  the Board Member for 
Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and Planning in December 2014. 
 
Draft Budget and Corporate Plan available for consultation in December 2014.  
 
Approval of Full Council in February 2015. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker Board Member for Corporate Strategy, Economic 
Development and Planning 
City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 

85



 
 

Planning 

Report Owner: Head of Policy Culture and Communications 

Report Contact: Peter McQuitty Tel: 01865 252780 
pmcquitty@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 
 
 

CEB 26 JANUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 20: AIDS AND ADAPTATIONS POLICY 
ID: I010042 

The document defines who is eligible for support under the aids and adaptations policy, and 
any limitations. The aim of this policy is to provide a cost effective service taking into account 
the health and well-being of the tenant and the household.  
The policy takes into account the following corporate and service priorities:  
Corporate Priorities  
Meeting Housing Needs  
Housing Strategy Objectives  
Meet the Housing Needs of Vulnerable Groups  
Support Sustainable Communities  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate Regeneration 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Stephen Clarke Tel: 01865 252447 
sclarke@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 21: APPOINTMENT TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2014 
ID: I009114 

To appoint Council representatives to outside bodies for the forthcoming year 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
PlanningCCCorporate Strategy, Economic 
Development and PlanningCC 

Report Owner: Head of Law and Governance 

Report Contact: Sarah Claridge  sclaridge@oxford.gov.ukC 

  

ITEM 22: COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER - ROGER DUDMAN WAY. 
ID: I010479 

Acquisition of land to facilitate the construction of a bridge to Fidlers Island from Roger 
Dudman Way to supplement and improve access and provision of cycle and walking routes 
in the City.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

86



 
 

Executive Lead Member: Cleaner, Greener Oxford, Climate Change and 
Transport,  
Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Regeneration and Major Projects Service 
Manager 

Report Contact: Mike Scott Tel: 01865 252138 
mwscott@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 23: COMPULSORY PURCHASE ORDER - LANHAM WAY, LITTLEMORE & 
COWLEY ROAD, OXFORD 
ID: I007981 

Compulsory Purchase of property at Lanham Way Oxford.  Update following previous CEB 
approval (October 2013) to initiation of CPO under approved Empty Homes Strategy.   

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate Regeneration 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property,  
Regeneration and Major Projects Service 
Manager 

Report Contact: Melanie Mutch  mmutch@oxford.gov.uk 
Mike Scott Tel: 01865 252138 
mwscott@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 24: DRAFT DIAMOND PLACE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 
(SPD) 
ID: I009631 

The draft Diamond Place SPD will be in the form of a development brief intended to guide 
future development of the Diamond Place/Ewert House site in Summertown. The SPD 
expands on Policy SP14 in the Sites and Housing Plan 2011-2026, which sets out the uses 
permitted on the site.  

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Sarah Harrison Tel: 01865 252015 
sbharrison@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 25: EXEMPTION POLICY FOR REPAIRS 
ID: I010046 

The Exemption Policy for Repairs is being updated to better reflect the needs of tenants 
through more comprehensive targeting support.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate Regeneration 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Nichola Griffiths Tel: 01865 252 336 

87



 
 

ngriffiths@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

 

ITEM 26: PURCHASE OF ST ALDATE'S CHAMBERS 
ID: I010346 

To make an offer for the purchase of the Council offices at 13 St Aldates. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Part exempt Commercial affairs of the Council. 

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Regeneration and Major Projects Service 
Manager 

Report Contact: Nick Twigg  ntwigg@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 27: LOCAL DEVELOPMENT SCHEME 
ID: I010035 

To adopt the Local Development Scheme  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Rona Knott Tel: 01865 252157 
rknott@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 28: OXFUTURES PROGRAMME 
ID: I008833 

Update on progress and risk regarding the EU funded OxFutures programme 
• update on delivery progress 
• description of delivery pipeline to Nov 2015 
• discussion of financial risks 

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Cleaner, Greener Oxford, Climate Change and 
Transport 

Report Owner: Head of Environmental Development 
Executive Director of Community Services 

Report Contact: Jo Colwell Tel: 01865 252188 
jcolwell@oxford.gov.uk 
Mairi Brookes Tel: 01865 252212 
mbrookes@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 29: ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
ID: I010160 

A refresh of the strategy  

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

88



 
 

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of Human Resources and Facilities 

Report Contact: Simon Howick Tel: 01865 252547 
showick@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 30: STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 2014 REVIEW 
ID: I010033 

The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is a statutory document that sets out how 
the Council will involve the community and others in planning decisions. It covers 
development control, policy, and design/conservation decisions. The current SCI was 
adopted in 2006 (reviewed in 2009) so it is now due to be reviewed to ensure it remains up 
to date.  
 
It was approved by the CEB on 19 November for consultation. The final report is due for 
determination in January. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
PlanningCC 

Report Owner: Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Lyndsey Beveridge Tel: 01865 25 2482 
lbeveridge@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

CEB 12 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 31: BARTON - ACQUISITION OF AFFORDABLE PROPERTY 
ID: I006432 

The report will update Members on the Council’s purchase of the affordable housing at 
Barton 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Part exempt Information relating to the business 
affairs of the Council 

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health, 
Housing and Estate Regeneration 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Stephen Clarke Tel: 01865 252447 
sclarke@oxford.gov.uk 
Alan Wylde Tel: 01865 252319 
awylde@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

89



 
 

 
 

ITEM 28: CAPITAL STRATEGY 
ID: I010207 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising 
two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open   

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 

Report Contact Nigel Kennedy Tel: 01865 252708 
nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 29: CREATION OF A PANEL TO MANAGE THE COUNCIL'S INVESTMENT 
PORTFOLIO 
ID: I010348 

To create a City Council Property Investment Panel capable of sanctioning (i) the acquisition 
of residential property for the Homelessness Accommodation Search and (ii) the acquisition 
of commercial investment property. 
 
The panel will consist of officers, the Leader and the Board Member for Finance, Asset 
Management and Public Health. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Executive Director of City Regeneration and 
Housing 

Report Contact: Jane Winfield Tel: 01865 252551 
jwinfield@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 30: GRANT ALLOCATIONS TO COMMUNITY AND VOLUNTARY 
ORGANISATIONS 2015/2016 
ID: I009804 

This report will set out the recommendations for the allocation of grant funding to the 
community and voluntary sector from 01.04.15.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Leisure Contract and Community Partnership 
Grants 

Report Owner: Head of Leisure, Parks and Communities 

Report Contact: Julia Tomkins Tel: 01865252685 

90



 
 

jtomkins@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 31: THE CULTURE STRATEGY 2015-18 
ID: I009798 

The 2015-2018 Culture Strategy includes the vision and priorities for the Culture team’s 
delivery and investment. It plays an important role in developing partnerships, enhancing 
cultural provision for Oxford’s communities, and highlighting the Council’s commitment to 
cultural regeneration and economic development. CEB will be asked to approve the Draft 
Culture Strategy so it can go out for public consultation. The Strategy will be revised 
following this consultation, at which point CEB will be asked to approve and adopt the 
revised Culture Strategy 2015-18.  
 
To approve the final strategy following public consultation. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Culture and Communities, Sports, Events and 
ParksCC 

Report Owner: Head of Policy Culture and Communications 

Report Contact: Ceri Gorton Tel: 01856 252829 
cgorton@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

 

ITEM 32: HOUSING STRATEGY 2015-2018 
ID: I009802 

The Draft Housing Strategy sets out the priorities for the next three years, with a new action 
plan to help deliver these priorities. Approval is being requested to consult on the draft 
strategy on a wider basis.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate RegenerationCC 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Gary Parsons Tel: 01865 252711 
gparsons@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 33: TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 15/16 
ID: I010203 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open   

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 

Report Contact Nigel Kennedy Tel: 01865 252708 
nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk 

91



 
 

  
 

COUNCIL 18 FEBRUARY 2015 

 

ITEM 34: RESERVES AND BALANCES REPORT 
ID: I010209 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open   

Decision Taker Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 

Report Contact Nigel Kennedy Tel: 01865 252708 
nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 35: COUNCIL TAX SETTING 
ID: I010211 

 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open   

Decision Taker Council 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Finance 

Report Contact Nigel Kennedy Tel: 01865 252708 
nkennedy@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

CEB 12 MARCH 2015 

 

ITEM 36: DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENT POLICY 
ID: I009095 

Review of the City Council's current policy in light of reduced funding 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Customer Services and Social Inclusion 

Report Owner: Head of Customer Services 

Report Contact: Paul Wilding Tel: 01865 252461 
pwilding@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 37: HOMELESSNESS GRANTS ALLOCATION 
ID: I008005 

This report will recommend the allocation of the Preventing Homelessness Grant and the 
Council’s monies relating to homelessness services. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

Is this item open or exempt to the   

92



 
 

public? 

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate Regeneration 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Nerys Parry  nparry@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

CEB 2 APRIL 2015 

 

ITEM 38: APPOINTMENT OF OUTSIDE BODIES 2015/16 
ID: I010171 

To appoint Council representatives to outside bodies and charities.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of Law and Governance 

Report Contact: Sarah Claridge Tel: 01865 252402 
sclaridge@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 

 

ITEM 39: ENERGY AND WATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
ID: I010350 

To ensure clear roles, responsibilities and controls in place to reduce energy and water 
consumption and costs in Council buildings and operations; to embed the use of whole life 
costing approach to decisions making  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Cleaner, Greener Oxford, Climate Change and 
Transport 

Report Owner: Head of Environmental Development 

Report Contact: John Copley Tel: 01865 252386 
jcopley@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 40: ENVIRONMENTAL DEVELOPMENT ENFORCEMENT POLICY 
ID: I003111 

Refresh the current enforcement policy to take account of government guidance and 
corporate priorities. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Councillor John TannerCC 

Report Owner: Head of Environmental Development 

Report Contact: John Copley Tel: 01865 252386 
jcopley@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

 

93



 
 

 

ITEM 41: FUSION LIFESTYLE - ANNUAL SERVICE PLAN 2015/16 
ID: I010167 

The report presents Fusion Lifestyle’s Annual Service Plan for the management of the 
Council’s leisure facilities for 2015/2016  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Leisure Contract and Community Partnership 
Grants 

Report Owner: Head of Leisure, Parks and Communities 

Report Contact: Lucy Cherry Tel: 01865 252707 
lcherry@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 42: HORSPATH ROAD SPORTS PAVILION - REMODELLING OPTIONS 
ID: I008107 

This report will review the options for remodelling the Horspath Road sports pavilion and for 
improving sports provision at Horspath Road. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Sports, Events and Parks 

Report Owner: Head of Leisure, Parks and Communities 

Report Contact: Ian Brooke Tel: 01865 252705 
ibrooke@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 43: OXFORD STATION REDEVELOPMENT 
ID: I010169 

Economic Strategy for the redevelopment of the Oxford Railway Station  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Michael Crofton-Briggs Tel: 01865 252360 
mcrofton-briggs@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 44: OXPENS DELIVERY STRATEGY 
ID: I009224 

3/7/2014 The report provides an update on progress on delivery of the Oxpens 
regeneration project and asks for approval for the budget to move it forward. 
 
1/4 / 2015 To confirm the business partners for the Oxpens re-development. 

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 
Council 

94



 
 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 
Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Executive Director of City Regeneration and 
Housing 
Head of City Development 

Report Contact: Fiona Piercy Tel: 01865 252185 
fpiercy@oxford.gov.uk 
Michael Crofton-Briggs Tel: 01865 252360 
mcrofton-briggs@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 45: SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND VULNERABLE ADULT 
POLICY 
ID: I008658 

10/2/2014: This report will represent the independent review of the outcome of its self-
assessment of its Safeguarding Children arrangements. 
 
1/4/2015:To review and refresh the policy and procedures 

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Educational Attainment and Youth Ambition 
Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Policy Culture and Communications 

Report Contact: Val Johnson Tel: 01865 252209 
vjohnson@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

COUNCIL 13 APRIL 2015 PROVISIONAL REPORTS 

 

ITEM 46: CONSTITUTION REVIEW 2015/16 
ID: I010173 

An annual report to propose any required changes to the constitution.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open 

Decision Taker Council 

Executive Lead Member: Corporate Strategy, Economic Development and 
Planning 

Report Owner: Head of Law and Governance 

Report Contact: Jeremy Thomas Tel: 01865 252224 
jjthomas@oxford.gov.uk, Emma Griffiths Tel: 
01865 252208 egriffiths@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 

CEB 14 MAY 2015 PROVISIONAL REPORTS 

 

ITEM 47: PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING POLICY 
ID: I010352 

To set out the future priorities and areas of intervention in the private rented and owner-
occupied residential sectors in Oxford.  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is likely to result in the Council incurring 
expenditure  which is greater than £500,000 

95



 
 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Finance, Asset Management and Public Health 

Report Owner: Head of Environmental Development 

Report Contact: John Copley Tel: 01865 252386 
jcopley@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 48: CITY CENTRE REPORT 2015 
ID: I010354 

City Centre Report 2015 

Is this a Key Decision? Not Key  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Crime and Community Response 

Report Owner: Head of Environmental Development 

Report Contact: John Copley Tel: 01865 252386 
jcopley@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ITEM 49: SHELTERED HOUSING REVIEW 
ID: I010356 

Approve outcomes of review, including future of some of the stock  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes It is significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area 
comprising two or more wards 

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker City Executive Board 

Executive Lead Member: Housing and Estate Regeneration 

Report Owner: Head of Housing and Property 

Report Contact: Gary Parsons Tel: 01865 252711 
gparsons@oxford.gov.uk 

  

ANNUAL COUNCIL 18 MAY 2015 

 

ITEM 50: APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES FOR THE YEAR 2015/16 
ID: I010361 

To appoint Councillors to Council Committees for 2015/16  

Is this a Key Decision? Yes  

Is this item open or exempt to the 
public? 

Open  

Decision Taker CouncilCCCouncil 

Executive Lead Member:  

Report Owner: Head of Law and Governance 

Report Contact: Pat  Jones  phjones@oxford.gov.uk 

  
 
 

96



18 November 2014 

Scrutiny Recommendation Tracker 2014-15 
 

Statement of Community Involvement 2014 Review – Scrutiny Committee 10 November 

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer  

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

1. That the Statement of Community 
engagement clearly sets out how 
members of the public can access 
paper versions of planning documents 

Y Very happy to accept that change to 
the report 

Cllr Price / 
Lyndsey 
Beveridge 

Y 

Towards Mental Health and Wellbeing – Scrutiny Committee 6 October  

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer  

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

2. That the establishment of the Member 
Challenge Panel for Mental Health and 
Wellbeing does not divert officer 
resources away from other Member 
Services such as Scrutiny. 
Consideration should be given to 
whether a budget bid is required to 
support this new Member Panel. 

Y I would anticipate this challenge panel 
being member led, and operating for 
the most part informally, rather than 
drawing upon extensive officer 
support.  

Cllr Turner / 
Val Johnson 

March 2015 

3. That the Action Plan is updated and 
elaborated upon to include progress 
made against actions that are due. 

Y These are sensible comments on how 
to develop the action plan, and we had 
certainly hoped to update and monitor 
it. 

Cllr Turner / 
Val Johnson 

March 2015 

4. That resources required to deliver the 
Action Plan are fully identified and 
costed, so that any bids for additional 
resources can be made as part of the 
current budget setting process. 

Y Cllr Turner / 
Val Johnson 

March 2015 

5. That consideration is given to the role 
of ethnic minority groups and faith 

Y Cllr Turner / 
Val Johnson 

March 2015 

97

A
genda Item

 8



18 November 2014 

leaders in supporting mental health and 
wellbeing in Oxford, and to how these 
can be included in the action plan. 

6. That consideration is given to how the 
action plan supports the mental health 
and wellbeing of service personnel and 
veterans, and to whether more focus on 
these specific groups is required. 

Y Cllr Turner / 
Val Johnson 

March 2015 

Draft Culture Strategy 2015-18 – Scrutiny Committee 6 October 

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer  

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

1.That the Culture Strategy presents the 
fullest picture of Oxford’s cultural offering, 
including cultural experiences that the City 
Council is not directly involved in. 

Y The Strategy is focused on cultural 
offerings and experiences that the 
Council supports (by funding or 
partnership working) or 
delivers.There’s no reason why we 
can’t explore these links. 

Cllr Simm / 
Peter McQuitty 

Feb 2015 

2.That the Culture Strategy sets out how 
City Council functions such as licencing 
and planning can play an important role in 
supporting culture. 

Y Yes Cllr Simm / 
Peter McQuitty 

Feb 2015 

3. That the list of organisations invited to 
contribute to the Culture Strategy is shared 
with elected members, so that they can 
make any further suggestions. 

Y Yes. Happy for this to be shared with 
anyone else members think would be 
helpful. 

Cllr Simm / 
Peter McQuitty 

Feb 2015 

4.That consideration is given to how the 
City Council can encourage visitors to 
spend more time in Oxford, and to whether 
increasing visitor length of stay should be 
made a priority in the Culture Strategy.   

Y This will be considered by Experience 
Oxfordshire, who are funded by the 
City Council, and included in their 
Service Level Agreement. It will also 
be considered in the action plan under 
priority one; Support the sustainability 

Cllr Simm / 
Peter McQuitty 

Feb 2015 

98



18 November 2014 

of Oxford’s cultural sector and improve 
the skills and diversity of the city’s 
current and future creative workforce. 

Budget Monitoring 2014/15 – Quarter 1 – Finance Panel 4 September  

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer  

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

7. That urgent action is taken to avoid a 
loss of subsidy relating to the 
overpayment of benefits. 

Y Extra action is already being taken, 
looking at training and processes.  The 
threshold is more stringent this year 
due to the removal of Council Tax 
benefit from this calculation.  

Cllr Turner / 
Helen Bishop 

Y 

8. If necessary to avoid slippage, a flexible 
approach should be taken to spending 
the £2m investment in Homelessness 
Property Acquisitions in 2014/2015.  
This could include investing in social 
housing instead. 

In part Note sentiment but other uses are 
likely to take longer. 

Cllr Turner  N/A 

9. The premises for the heavy vehicle 
testing facility should be flexible enough 
that it can be used for other purposes in 
the event that the testing facility is not 
successful. 

Y The facility is expected to be 
successful. 

Cllr Turner  March 2015 

10. The capital programme should be a red 
risk in performance reports until the 
new capital gateway process proven to 
be effective. 

N Risks are measured using the Risk 
Management Framework agreed by 
Council. 

Cllr Turner   N/A 

Treasury Management – Finance Panel 4 September 

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer 

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

1. That consideration is given to how the 
capital process can be made more 

In part Noted.  Where possible a flexible 
approach will be taken. Changes to the 

Cllr Turner N/A 

99



18 November 2014 

flexible so that approved projects can 
be brought forward to mitigate slippage 
elsewhere in the programme. 

capital programme have to be agreed 
by Council.  

Oxfordshire Growth Board - Scrutiny Committee 23 June 

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer 

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

1. For the Terms of Reference to explicitly 
set out that meeting agendas and 
minutes will be publicly available and 
that access to meetings will be possible 
for Councillors and members of the 
public. 

Y This suggestion will be referred to the 
Board 

Cllr Price Dec 2014 

Community Engagement Policy Statement - Scrutiny Committee 23 June 

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer  

Implemented 
Y/N / due date 

11. To provide a clear statement in the 
principles on the ambition for 
engagement focusing on depth as well 
as breadth.   

Y Merged with recommendation 3. Cllrs 
Price&Simm;   
Sadie Paige 

N/A 

12. To provide information on the 
engagement ambitions set for all 
consultations during the last year, what 
was achieved and how this fits with the 
principles set within the Policy 
Statement.   

Y To provide this information for all 
consultations would be a huge piece of 
work so a sample will be used instead, 
together with a forward-looking 
approach.  

Cllrs 
Price&Simm;   
Sadie Paige 

Verbal update 
on progress 
expected on 
10 Nov 14.  
Full response 
to follow. 

13. To suggest to the Scrutiny Committee 
an up and coming 
engagement/empowerment exercise 
that can act as a pilot study to 
demonstrate the effectiveness of the 
principles within this report.  

Y Two consultations identified as 
candidates for the pilot as per CEB 
suggestion. Project brief created for 
the pilot, which includes the objectives, 
and a reporting template.   

Cllrs Price 
&Simm;   
Sadie Paige 

2 March 15 

100



18 November 2014 

14. To provide a table that shows how all 
comments received during the 
consultation on this Policy Statement 
have been handled.   

Y Expected at 10 November Scrutiny 
Committee meeting. 

Cllrs Price 
&Simm;   
Sadie Paige 

10 Nov 14 

End of Year Integrated Report – 2013-2014 - Scrutiny Committee 23 June 

Recommendation 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Executive response 
Lead Member 
& Officer 

Implemented 
Y/N 

2. The Committee supports the purchase 
of the Iffley Road building as an asset 
of value to the community and 
recognises that negotiations are on-
going.  There is a gap between the 
asking price and the money available 
and the City Executive Board is asked 
to do what it can within reasonable 
value for money criteria to secure the 
purchase of this property.    

Y Noted (£250k has been earmarked for 
acquisition of property). 

Cllr Turner; 
Nigel 
Kennedy; Jane 
Lubbock 

N 

3. To consider the contingency available 
to support homelessness in light of 
county proposals for implementing cuts 
in the Supporting People and if 
underspends from 13/14 should be 
maintained within this budget.    

N Current level of contingency 
considered to be sufficient. 

Cllr Turner; 
Nigel 
Kennedy; Jane 
Lubbock 

N/A 

Fusion Lifestyle Performance 2013-2014 - Scrutiny Committee 23 June 

Additional information requested 
Agreed 
Y/N 

Outcome 
Lead Member 
& Officer 

Implemented 
Y/N 

Facility running costs  
It was agreed at the June meeting in 2013 
that the running costs of the facilities would 
be shown including all capital investment 
and loan cost in the next report.  This 

N/A Information papers considered by 
Scrutiny Committee on 2 September.   
 
Meeting offered to Chair to discuss 
finance investment financing. 

Cllr Rowley; 
Lucy Cherry 

Y 

101



18 November 2014 

hadn’t been done.   
 
Performance outside of expectations  
Members asked how poor performance 
was addressed and asked to see the 
issues raised and the actions/penalties 
taken over the last year.   
 
Publicity Campaign 
An issue was raised concerning literature 
used to highlight the Active Women 
Campaign.  The images used were 
considered to be too stereotypical and 
gendered.  The Committee asked that this 
issue be taken up with Sports England who 
run this national campaign.   
 
Views of non-card users at facilities 
The Committee asked to see any 
information on the views and experiences 
of non-card users. 
 
Falling attendance amongst young 
people  
The Committee were concerned to see this 
and wanted some more detailed data and 
information to understand more fully the 
reasons behind it and whether it was a 
particular set of circumstances or a trend.   
 
Information excluded from the public 
The Committee heard a complaint from a 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102



18 November 2014 

member of the public that the information 
provided outlining the running costs to the 
Council of each Leisure Facility should be 
made public because if the Council was 
still running these centres then the 
information would be available publically.  
The Committee heard that this was 
commercial information but asked that this 
exclusion is reconsidered by Fusion.      
 
Investment financing 
Members were interested in why the City 
Council financed investment spending that 
Fusion Lifestyle was originally required to 
finance, and in how much this saved the 
partnership.  

 
 
 

103



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Monday 10 November 2014 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Hayes (Vice-Chair), Altaf-Khan, Anwar, 
Brandt, Coulter, Darke, Fry, Hollick, Hollingsworth, Henwood and Upton. 
 
BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Susan Brown. 
 
OFFICERS PRESENT: Andrew Brown (Scrutiny Officer), Michael Crofton-Briggs 
(Head of City Development), Martin John (Electoral Services Manager), Sadie 
Paige (Policy, Culture and Communication), Jennifer Thompson (Law and 
Governance) and Paul Wilding (Benefit Operations Manager). 
 
 
38. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Simmons (substitute 
Councillor Brandt) and Councillor Lloyd-Shogbesan (substitute Councillor 
Hollingsworth). 
 
The Vice-Chair took the chair for this meeting. 
 
The Vice-Chair paid tribute to Val Smith’s contribution to the scrutiny committee 
and her work on the Housing Panel. 
 
 
39. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
40. UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY PANELS 
 
Councillor Hollick gave a brief update on the work of the Housing Panel. 
Councillor Fry gave a brief update on the work of the Finance Panel and 
proposals for scrutiny of the budget.  
Councillor Upton reported on an informative visit to three council-owned parks: 
Blackbird Leys, Spindleberry nature reserve, and Florence Park. 
 
 
41. DISCRETIONARY HOUSING PAYMENTS - MONITORING REPORT 
 
The Head of Customer Service submitted a report on the monitoring and 
expenditure of the discretionary housing payment (DHP) budget (previously 
circulated now appended). 
 
Councillor Susan Brown and Paul Wilding, Programme Manager – Revenue and 
Benefits, introduced the report and asked the committee if they had come across 
cases where a DHP would be appropriate and knew how to refer these to the 
welfare team. They explained that the welfare team pro-actively contacted those 
who might be affected by caps or cuts to their benefits The team liaised with 
Mind and Restore to support vulnerable people, and with housing and JobCentre 
staff.  
  105

Agenda Item 9



 

They expected central government funding to decrease. The current funding of 
£200,000 was adequate provided there were no further changes necessitating 
larger numbers of awards, particularly long-term awards. The carry-forward 
should be retained to deal with future pressures. The policy was primarily aimed 
at providing short term support, awarding fairly and consistently, and not 
subsidising private landlords. Long-term awards to those affected by the 
bedroom tax would gradually decrease as recipients reached pension age; but 
there may be new awards to those newly affected by the caps. Those recently 
unemployed were more likely to require only short-term support. The welfare 
team comprised five staff, partly funded by grants, and European Social Fund 
grant for specific work.  
 
The Committee noted the report and update and asked for: 

• information on the interaction between housing top-up payments and DHPs; 
and 

• officers to consider a performance measure related to the potential costs of 
not awarding a DHP. 

 
 
42. COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT PLAN 2014-17 - CONSULTATION 

RESULTS AND ANALYSIS  
 
The Head of Policy, Culture and Communications submitted a report on the 
results and analysis of the consultation on the community engagement plan. 
 
Sadie Page, Consultation Officer, introduced the report and explained that an 
analysis of consultations in the last year and two pilot consultations would be 
presented to a later meeting. 
 
A ‘you said…. we did….’ measure to show actions taken had been introduced.  
The overall profile of on-line respondents was measured against the profile of 
the city, and underrepresented groups then further encouraged to take part. It 
was harder to measure the profile of off-line respondents.  
  
The Committee commented that: 

• contact with Oxford Brookes student union should be established; and 

• consultations should be tailored to the policy or questions. 
 
 
43. INDIVIDUAL VOTER REGISTRATION 
 
The Head of Law and Governance submitted a report on individual electoral 
registration. 
 
Martin John, Electoral Services Manager, introduced the report and outlined the 
actions taken to publicise individual registration and the outcome of on-going 
national discussions with the Electoral Commission and the Cabinet Office.  
 
Government were anticipating a 10% fall in registration. This was likely to be 
higher in Oxford where 3rd party registrations primarily on behalf of students 
were high.  
A substantial fall in electoral numbers automatically triggered a review of ward 
boundaries and it was anticipated this would affect Oxford as well as many other 
authorities. 

106



 

 
Students may not wish to register in Oxford as well as at home, or receive 
notification to register. He was working with Oxford Brookes and building links 
with Oxford University colleges to draw up lists of pending voters and encourage 
registration, although unless students completed their registration and were able 
to provide identification they would remain pending. Other major university towns 
were experiencing similar problems with student registrations. 
 
The people who failed the electronic data matching process were those most 
likely to be unable to provide prescribed identification, and there was no 
provision to use other means of verification.  
 
Electors could register using city council customer service machines or over the 
phone if they had their ID to hand.  
 
The pro-active work needed to encourage registration was necessary but costly 
and more staff were needed to manage the workload and publicity. Increased 
costs to date included £60,000 on postage because of the extra paperwork. The 
Cabinet Office had fully funded the additional costs to date. There may be 
pressure to increase registration, but this was unlikely to be a requirement. It 
was possible to impose fixed-penalty type fines for failing to register, but likely to 
be impractical and not cost-effective. 
 
The Committee noted the report and the answers to their questions. 
 
 
44. STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 2014 REVIEW 
 
The Head of City Development submitted a report setting out the draft Statement 
of Community Involvement to be discussed by the City Executive Board. 
 
Lyndsey Beveridge, Senior Planner, and Michael Crofton-Briggs, Head of City 
Development, introduced the report. 
 
For individual planning applications, letters to neighbours produced about a 2% 
response rate. These were replaced by site notices and online notifications with 
alert services. Participation rates were rising. There was no follow-up other than 
an automated acknowledgement of a comment. 
 
Applicants were encouraged to undertake early consultations and should be 
including a record of this with their applications. Final reports contained a list of 
public consultees and their responses. Pre-application discussions with officers 
were not a matter of public record but could be released under the Freedom of 
Information Act unless there were reasons not to do so.  
 
Three forums (Headington, Summertown and St Margaret’s, and Wolvercote) 
were designated and working on their neighbourhood plans.  
 
Officers would be evaluating the results of the recent online consultation about 
accessing planning applications online. 
 
The Committee made one recommendation to the City Executive Board: that the 
statement should explain how to view printed copies of plans. 
 

107



 

 
45. WESTGATE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
 
The Head of City Development submitted a report on proposals for Community 
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) expenditure. 
 
Michael Crofton-Briggs, Head of City Development, introduced the report and 
explained the principles of the CIL and agreeing expenditure as part of the 
Council’s capital budget. Detailed planning conditions for this scheme would be 
agreed with input from Oxfordshire County Council to maintain adequate control 
over improvements to the public spaces and highways.  
 
The Committee made no recommendations to the City Executive Board. 
 
 
46. PERFORMANCE MONITORING - QUARTER 2 
 
The Committee considered the performance monitoring report for quarter 2 and 
noted that areas of lower performance had recently come to the committee were 
scheduled for discussion at future meetings. 
 
 
47. WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN 
 
The Committee agreed to pre-scrutinise the following reports: 

• Purchase of St Aldate’s Chambers 

• Discretionary rates relief for businesses policy 
 
and noted  

• the Housing Panel would pre-scrutinise noted the Housing Panel would pre-
scrutinise the Aids and Adaptions Policy and the Exemption Policy for 
Repairs. 

• the Finance Panel would pre-scrutinise the budget and the corporate plan. 
 
The Committee noted the work programme. 
 
 
48. INEQUALITIES PANEL - TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The Committee noted these. 
 
 
49. BUDGET SCRUTINY - TERMS OF REFERENCE AND TIMETABLE 
 
The Committee noted these. 
 
 
50. REPORT BACK ON RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Committee noted these. 
 
 
 
 

108



 

51. MINUTES 
 
The Committee approved the minutes of the meeting held on 6 October as a true 
and accurate record. 
 
 
52. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 
The Committee noted the meeting dates, and that an additional meeting was 
scheduled for 23 December at 10.00am to deal with any called-in decisions from 
December’s Executive Board meetings. 
 
 
 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 8.25 pm 
 
 

109



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Corporate Peer Challenge Action Plan
	Appendix 1 - Oxford City CPC Feedback Letter - final version 210814
	Appendix 2 - Our Awards
	www.oxford.gov.uk
	Our Awards



	5 Clean Streets
	6 Discretionary Rates Relief for Businesses Policy
	Appendix A Discretionary Rate Relief Policy OCC 14 11 14 - AB formatting
	Appendix B Discretionary Rate Relief
	Appendix C Risk register_Discretionary Rate Relief
	Blank Risk Register  


	7 Work Programme and Forward Plan
	Forward Plan

	8 Report back on recommendations
	9 Minutes

	5veGZvcmQuZ292LnVrL2F3YXJkcwA=_1: 
	sitesearch: 
	sitesearch_search: 




